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  1            (Case called) 
  2            THE COURT:  We have the major issue of e-discovery 
  3   protocols and the like.  Also, I got this mor ning a letter from 
  4   the plaintiffs asking for permission to make a motion for 
  5   sanctions.  I guess we will deal with that fi rst. 
  6            However, I suggest, since lead couns el seems to be out 
  7   of state, perhaps, that you all talk to the N ew York office a 
  8   lot more, because we generally don't do disco very motions as 
  9   motions.  If all you're asking for is money a nd you want to 
 10   make a motion for sanctions and I'll get to i t when I get to 
 11   it, which may well be when discovery otherwis e is over, feel 
 12   free. 
 13            In addition, in general it is Second  Circuit law that 
 14   I can't stop you from making any motion you w ant at any point 
 15   after a pre-motion conference.  I certainly a m not giving 
 16   plaintiffs in this case, or either side in th is case, although 
 17   it was plaintiffs who requested it, the abili ty to file motions 
 18   in the future without pre-motion conferences.   I just don't see 
 19   how that is consistent with our local practic e.  Maybe somebody 
 20   on the plaintiffs' side could try to explain that to me. 
 21            MS. BAINS:  Your Honor, we are OK wi th that ruling, 
 22   but we requested that because of the numerous  discovery 
 23   violations that have been happening -- 
 24            THE COURT:  My question is, why are you trying to 
 25   practice law the San Francisco way instead of  the New York way? 
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  1            MS. BAINS:  We are not asking to do that.  We respect 
  2   the Court's decision. 
  3            THE COURT:  That's what the letter s ays.  You want to 
  4   be relieved of all pre-motion conferences, is n't that what your 
  5   letter asks for? 
  6            MS. BAINS:  Given the circumstances of this case, yes. 
  7            THE COURT:  Frankly, given the circu mstances in the 
  8   case, all the more reason why there should be  pre-motion 
  9   conferences.  Otherwise, it will be five year s before discovery 
 10   is concluded, because each of you doesn't lik e what the other 
 11   is doing.  If we do it the formal motion way for everything you 
 12   want to do, there will be at least a month de lay while a motion 
 13   is filed and responded to.  So, I'm having a little bit of 
 14   trouble seriously understanding what it is th at you think 
 15   you're doing. 
 16            MS. WIPPER:  This is Jeanette Wipper .  Your Honor, if 
 17   I may address the Court.  We are not asking t o not comply with 
 18   your individual practices.  The issue that we  are dealing with 
 19   and we are trying to address -- 
 20            THE COURT:  Ms. Wipper, with all due  respect, excuse 
 21   me.  Let me read what you wrote me, page 8 of  your letter, last 
 22   sentence on the page "Plaintiffs further resp ectfully request 
 23   to be relieved of the obligation to file pre- motion letters and 
 24   appear for pre-motion conferences before fili ng future motions 
 25   to compel in this matter."  That is directly contrary to 
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  1   Southern District practice. 
  2            MS. WIPPER:  Your Honor, if I may ad dress that.  The 
  3   reason we raised the issue in the letter is b ecause we are 
  4   currently fighting with defense counsel about  discovery that 
  5   was requested on May 13, 2011, and was compel led by Judge 
  6   Sullivan on September 14th of 2012 and was co mpelled by your 
  7   Honor on January 4th of 2012. 
  8            THE COURT:  Why is it that adding a month delay, if 
  9   not more, to every discovery motion to compel  gains anything? 
 10   Plus, of course, as I explained to all of you  at our last 
 11   conference, whatever may have occurred before  I got involved in 
 12   the case, there is not much I can do about th at.  As to 
 13   noncompliance going forward, I intend to deal  with that and 
 14   deal with it strictly. 
 15            MS. WIPPER:  Thank you, your Honor.  If you believe 
 16   that it would be more efficient to have more frequent 
 17   conferences, obviously we would like that to happen. 
 18            THE COURT:  Ms. Wipper, have you rea d my rules? 
 19            MS. WIPPER:  Yes, your Honor. 
 20            THE COURT:  What does it say about t he frequency of 
 21   conferences?  I'm going to embarrass you here , because I really 
 22   don't think you did read them.  What does my rule say? 
 23            MS. WIPPER:  I understand you have a  rocket docket, 
 24   and I also understand that if you don't move to compel early 
 25   enough, you may not allow the party to file a  motion to compel. 
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  1            THE COURT:  What does my rule say ab out conferences? 
  2            MS. WIPPER:  That you are available for conferences 
  3   and that pre-motion conferences are required.  
  4            THE COURT:  And that any time you ha ve a discovery 
  5   dispute, even if the prescheduled conference is a month away, a 
  6   week away, a day away, if you've got an emerg ency, meaning it 
  7   should be decided sooner rather than later, y ou contact the 
  8   Court and I get you in. 
  9            I'm not happy, first of all, with th e way both sides 
 10   are handling this case, which frankly is only  adding more costs 
 11   to your respective clients or, if plaintiffs are on a 
 12   contingency, more work for which you someday hope you will get 
 13   paid by somebody. 
 14            In any event, you are not relieved f rom pre-motion 
 15   conference requirements.  As to whether you w ant to make 
 16   motions after that at any point in discovery matters, even 
 17   though in almost all cases I will have ruled from the bench, go 
 18   right ahead.  The result is not going to be a ny different. 
 19            With respect to this on the merits, let me hear from 
 20   defendant. 
 21            MR. BRECHER:  Good afternoon, your H onor.  Jeffrey 
 22   Brecher on behalf of MSL Group.  We received this letter last 
 23   night at around 8 o'clock via email, so we ha ven't had a full 
 24   opportunity to review everything in it.  But let me address 
 25   what is raised in the letter. 
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  1            The first issue is complaints.  At t he conference that 
  2   was held on January 4th, you ordered the defe ndant to produce 
  3   complaints made by females alleging gender di scrimination and 
  4   sexual harassment for the period of February 2008 to February 
  5   24th of 2011.  They have appealed that ruling  to District Judge 
  6   Carter.  On January 25th we produced document s falling within 
  7   the scope of the Court's order. 
  8            THE COURT:  Is that a complete produ ction other than 
  9   what may be in the ESI?  They say it's not. 
 10            MR. BRECHER:  Right.  What we did is  when they said it 
 11   is not, we sent them an email saying that is all we are aware 
 12   of and we conducted a diligent search for any  complaints, if 
 13   you have any other information that might lea d us to something 
 14   else, feel free, give it to us.  We didn't he ar back from them 
 15   for a week.  On Monday they gave us some addi tional names. 
 16            On Tuesday, yesterday, we did some f urther 
 17   investigation to see if there was anything re lating to those 
 18   individuals mentioned.  At this point we have  not identified 
 19   any other additional complaints that fall wit hin the scope of 
 20   the Court's order. 
 21            THE COURT:  Tell me your method of s earch and who you 
 22   spoke to, how you went about it, what files w ere searched. 
 23            MR. BRECHER:  With respect to the na mes that they 
 24   mentioned, we could not find any additional c omplaints.  We 
 25   have identified one other person unrelated to  anyone they 
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  1   mentioned that we believe will probably be re sponsive and will 
  2   produce this week. 
  3            What did we do?  We spoke with the h ighest levels of 
  4   the company with respect to the human resourc es department. 
  5   That would have included the senior vice pres ident of human 
  6   resources for North America, the director of human resources, 
  7   and the chief town officer.  We also had the local HR offices 
  8   check to see if there were any other complain ts that we were 
  9   not aware of. 
 10            In addition to that, Judge, for the people that they 
 11   mentioned specifically, we inquired of the ac tive employees who 
 12   we are able to contact, are you aware of anyt hing, without 
 13   divulging the substance of our communications  that are 
 14   privileged.  We have not identified any other  complaints, other 
 15   than the one that I mentioned, that are respo nsive and within 
 16   the scope of the Court's order. 
 17            If they have something more specific , if they have the 
 18   name of the person who complained, the date t hat it happened, 
 19   I'm happy to go look further.  But at this po int, Judge, we 
 20   feel we have complied with the order.  I woul d say we don't 
 21   appreciate the last-minute motion for sanctio ns the night 
 22   before the court order.  It's not professiona l, Judge. 
 23            THE COURT:  Let me hear first from - - who am I hearing 
 24   from? 
 25            MS. NURHUSSEIN:  Thank you, your Hon or. 
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  1            THE COURT:  You're Ms.? 
  2            MS. NURHUSSEIN:  Siham Nurhussein fo r plaintiffs. 
  3            THE COURT:  It will take me a while to figure out who 
  4   is who.  Go ahead. 
  5            MS. NURHUSSEIN:  Understandable, you r Honor.  If I 
  6   could respond to a couple of points Mr. Brech er mention.  First 
  7   of all, this is the first we have heard as to  the sort of 
  8   search he has conducted. 
  9            THE COURT:  I suspect that is becaus e you and they 
 10   don't talk to each other or don't talk to eac h other very well. 
 11            MS. NURHUSSEIN:  Actually, your Hono r, he mentioned 
 12   that we raised this issue for the first time in terms of the 
 13   types of complaints we were aware of on Monda y.  We actually 
 14   sent an email on January 30th, so over a week  ago, raising all 
 15   these concerns, identifying at least one -- 
 16            THE COURT:  Let's get to the merits.   You each think 
 17   you sandbagged each other.  You may well be o n your way to a 
 18   special master if I lose too much patience wi th you.  But let's 
 19   get to the merits. 
 20            On the employment discrimination com plaints, what is 
 21   it that you want them to do that they haven't  done or what is 
 22   it you think is missing other than you think the company is 
 23   rife with discrimination and therefore there should be more? 
 24   That I can't rule on. 
 25            MS. NURHUSSEIN:  Your Honor, I think  we do need 
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  1   confirmation, which I think Mr. Brecher has j ust confirmed, but 
  2   I'd like him to be clear about that, that he has inquired and 
  3   searched the files of all individuals that MS L itself 
  4   identified as having responsibility for inves tigating and 
  5   responding to complaints of discrimination.  That's a 
  6   reasonable request because in response to -- 
  7            THE COURT:  He doesn't necessarily h ave to search 
  8   those files if he talks to those people and t hey say there 
  9   isn't anything. 
 10            MS. NURHUSSEIN:  Yes. 
 11            THE COURT:  That's what I have heard  him to be saying. 
 12            MS. NURHUSSEIN:  I just want to conf irm that that 
 13   conversation occurred with every individual w ho MSL identified 
 14   as having responsibility for responding to an d/or investigating 
 15   complaints. 
 16            MR. BRECHER:  Two comments, I guess,  Judge.  The first 
 17   is, obviously, the Court has discretion to or der us to disclose 
 18   our efforts.  But to the extent that we are c onstantly being 
 19   asked for each response to identify every ste p that we took to 
 20   respond, that is not how typically we respond  to discovery. 
 21   I'm not obligated to share my work product as  to every step I 
 22   took and what decisions I made. 
 23            THE COURT:  No, but I'm sure you don 't want a 30(b)(6) 
 24   deposition on useless subjects, because it's just going to be 
 25   more expensive. 
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  1            MR. BRECHER:  We are going to get th at anyway. 
  2            THE COURT:  That is probably true in  this case. 
  3            MR. BRECHER:  We did, as I said, spe ak with the 
  4   highest levels of HR in our discussions with our client, again 
  5   without revealing any privileged communicatio ns.  We believe 
  6   that that would be sufficient to identify the  complaints. 
  7   However, we went a step further.  I'm not goi ng to represent to 
  8   the Court I personally spoke with each person , I can't make 
  9   that representation, but we have inquired wit h the local HR 
 10   people who are still active -- I can't speak to former 
 11   people -- if there are any other complaints, and we have not 
 12   identified any other than the one that I ment ioned earlier. 
 13            Based on that, instead of calling us , discussing it on 
 14   Monday, they say, here's what I want you to d o, tell us one, 
 15   two, three, four, five, everything you did, a nd on Tuesday, the 
 16   next day, they file a motion for sanctions at  8 o'clock at 
 17   night.  Judge, this is just an example of wha t we have been 
 18   dealing with. 
 19            THE COURT:  Ms. Nurhussein? 
 20            MS. NURHUSSEIN:  One other issue I'd  like to raise, 
 21   your Honor.  MSL, our understanding is that t hey are limiting 
 22   their search of the shared drives and have on ly conducted the 
 23   search as to certain HR drives. 
 24            THE COURT:  If we are talking about ESI, that's an 
 25   entirely different issue.  This is paper. 
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  1            MS. NURHUSSEIN:  Your Honor, I think  the issue is that 
  2   MSL, as we will get into more detail later on  -- 
  3            THE COURT:  Then save it for later o n. 
  4            MS. NURHUSSEIN:  OK. 
  5            THE COURT:  So there are no sanction s as to the 
  6   discrimination complaint issue.  Payroll? 
  7            MS. WIPPER:  Your Honor, if I can ad dress the Court, 
  8   before you move forward to payroll, on the is sue of the 
  9   complaint? 
 10            THE COURT:  Excuse me.  Are we doing  tag team? 
 11            MS. WIPPER:  No.  Sorry, your Honor.  
 12            THE COURT:  You can show up in perso n next time or you 
 13   can argue the whole thing yourself on the pho ne with your 
 14   associate sitting here.  You can't do both. 
 15            MS. NURHUSSEIN:  Your Honor, may I m ake one more 
 16   point?  We also have concerns, because we are  aware of specific 
 17   complaints against -- 
 18            THE COURT:  Counsel, how do I rule?  Tell me what 
 19   ruling you'd like.  That I should sanction th em because you 
 20   think there are others or even know of others  that they haven't 
 21   produced?  If you want to do 30(b)(6) deposit ions, it's a waste 
 22   of time and money.  At this point on this rec ord I'm not sure 
 23   what you want me to do. 
 24            Yes, I understand there is some circ ularity to all of 
 25   this, you give them names and then they perha ps find documents. 
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  1   But since we are talking about the paper and knowledge 
  2   information of the HR department and the like  at this point and 
  3   there is going to be a much more complete sea rch of ESI if we 
  4   ever get to that issue today, I'm not quite s ure what you want 
  5   me to do. 
  6            MS. NURHUSSEIN:  Your Honor, the con cern -- 
  7            THE COURT:  I understand your concer n.  You're telling 
  8   me they didn't produce everything.  Mr. Brech er is telling me 
  9   they did produce whatever they found, and the  description he 
 10   gave of what they did sounds reasonable.  How  do I rule for 
 11   you? 
 12            MS. NURHUSSEIN:  Your Honor, I think  we also need 
 13   confirmation that at a minimum MSL has conduc ted a search for 
 14   complaints relating to the specific individua ls that we have 
 15   identified even though we have much more limi ted access to 
 16   information and access to MSL employees. 
 17            THE COURT:  Write them a letter, and  they will respond 
 18   to it. 
 19            MS. NURHUSSEIN:  Actually, they have  not been 
 20   responding to the majority of our corresponde nce, which is 
 21   another reason why -- 
 22            THE COURT:  New rules.  For example,  one, no letter to 
 23   the Court closer to the conference than two d ays before.  I 
 24   didn't see this letter until 9 o'clock this m orning.  It came 
 25   in at 8 o'clock last night.  There are limits .  That's number 
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  1   one. 
  2            Number two, modification of the Rifk ind rule, Rifkind 
  3   being the senior partner of my old firm Paul Weiss Rifkind. 
  4   The modification is all letters will be respo nded to within a 
  5   week, sooner if at all possible, certainly no  later than a 
  6   week. 
  7            With all due respect, I don't know h ow it got here. 
  8   Maybe it's because when you were in front of Judge Sullivan 
  9   originally, the case was not given as much ju dicial supervision 
 10   as it needed, but you're out of control here.   You all had 
 11   better cooperate with each other.  If you don 't, I am going to 
 12   withdraw Ms. Wipper's telephone privileges; a nd if you want a 
 13   regular 9 o'clock every Friday conference or whatever, we'll do 
 14   it, until I lose even more patience with you,  and then you'll 
 15   get a special master, and whoever loses each issue in front of 
 16   the special master will pay the special maste r's fees of 
 17   several hundred to a thousand dollars an hour . 
 18            I've seen many a big case in this co urt go a lot more 
 19   smoothly than this.  As I say, I cannot speak  to what happened 
 20   before I inherited the case, but I expect coo peration.  Stop 
 21   the whining and stop the sandbagging.  This g oes for both 
 22   sides.  Get along.  You're going to run out o f your judicial 
 23   time.  And I don't just mean the discovery pe riod will end. 
 24   You're not my only case, you're not my only b ig case.  At some 
 25   point I'm going to say every conference is tw o hours with you 
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  1   guys and you don't get any more conferences b ecause you have 
  2   used up your allotment of judicial time. 
  3            Now let's move on to the payroll.  M r. Brecher. 
  4            MR. BRECHER:  Thank you, your Honor.   If I might, 
  5   could you add one more little rule to your li st there?  Just 
  6   that all correspondence be sent by the close of business, not 
  7   11 o'clock at night? 
  8            THE COURT:  It doesn't matter, but i t won't count 
  9   until the next business day.  Obviously, if i t is coming to me 
 10   by two days before, I don't mean anything aft er when I go home 
 11   at 6 o'clock at night.  I usually stay later,  but we will count 
 12   that as your cutoff. 
 13            MR. BRECHER:  Thank you, your Honor.  
 14            THE COURT:  For a Wednesday conferen ce, I would expect 
 15   letters no later than 6 o'clock on Monday, et c.  If it's a 
 16   Monday conference, that means Thursday.  Busi ness days. 
 17            MR. BRECHER:  Thank you, your Honor.  
 18            With respect to the payroll, let me go back to the 
 19   first request for production of documents whi ch asked for a 
 20   database or computerized information regardin g salary.  What we 
 21   did, Judge, in the case is we gave them data regarding the 
 22   entire class, every male, every female.  That  means every date 
 23   of hire, every termination, every salary, eve ry promotion, 
 24   every bonus.  They have all of that informati on, which would 
 25   enable them to compare the salaries of one pe rson against 
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  1   another.  They have all of that information. 
  2            What they then requested was, well, we want the 
  3   information on the W-2, box 5 on the W-2.  I' m not quite 
  4   certain why that information is more relevant  than the annual 
  5   salary of a person, since it would seem logic al you would 
  6   compare two salaries as opposed to what someo ne earned at a 
  7   particular point. 
  8            THE COURT:  However. 
  9            MR. BRECHER:  However, what we told the plaintiffs was 
 10   the W-2 is not an electronic document.  The W -2's are PDF's, 
 11   but it's not a number you can extract from th e PDF. 
 12            THE COURT:  Why can't you just, and maybe it's because 
 13   you're only doing this for a subset of employ ees -- 
 14            MR. BRECHER:  Right. 
 15            THE COURT:  -- give them the disks w ith the W-2's on 
 16   it? 
 17            MR. BRECHER:  Because we have to pul l each person's 
 18   W-2. 
 19            THE COURT:  Why don't you let them d o that? 
 20            MS. NURHUSSEIN:  It has all the othe r financial 
 21   information and salary information of other p eople.  Judge, you 
 22   said if there is an electronic way to get tha t at that time, 
 23   provide it to them.  What we did was we consu lted with the 
 24   client, is there a way where we can get the g ross earnings per 
 25   year, which is what they want.  If someone wo rked six months, 
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  1   they want to know what someone made for 6 mon ths regardless of 
  2   what their salary was for the year.  They alr eady had that, but 
  3   they want the subset.  Is there a way to do t hat?  We believe 
  4   there is.  So we extracted that data and we p rovided it to 
  5   them. 
  6            The first I'm hearing is in a motion  for sanctions 
  7   that the information is erroneous, it's got e rrors in it.  They 
  8   never said to us, oh, there is a problem with  the data or we 
  9   need to talk about this further.  I'm not sur e what the problem 
 10   is with the data, but we have given them now people's salary, 
 11   they know exactly what everybody made, and we  have given them 
 12   what they earned.  I'm not sure what the prob lem is. 
 13            THE COURT:  At this point are the CD 's normal CD's 
 14   that can be read anywhere? 
 15            MR. BRECHER:  They are CD's that I b elieve have PDF's 
 16   of each W-2, yes. 
 17            THE COURT:  Do you really want these  CD's? 
 18            MS. BAINS:  Yes, your Honor. 
 19            THE COURT:  Fine.  Here is what you are going to do. 
 20   You are going to read them at defense counsel 's office.  No 
 21   notes can be taken.  You will print out what you want to print 
 22   out page by page only for who you are entitle d to the 
 23   information on.  You will then show those cop ies to Mr. Brecher 
 24   or his colleagues.  Then you will get the cop ies, assuming they 
 25   are for the right people.  This is all so muc h ado about 
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  1   nothing. 
  2            MS. BAINS:  Your Honor, at the last conference defense 
  3   counsel also claimed that they have given us all pay 
  4   information, which we then received actual pa y information that 
  5   was in the people's database all along. 
  6            THE COURT:  One issue at a time.  Do  you want the 
  7   W-2's or not? 
  8            MS. BAINS:  We do, because we didn't  get full and 
  9   complete payroll. 
 10            THE COURT:  Stop.  Please.  I take j udicial notice of 
 11   the fact that you don't like the defendants.  Stop whining and 
 12   let's talk substance.  I don't care how we go t here and I'm not 
 13   giving anyone money today.  In the future not  only will there 
 14   be sanctions for whoever wins or loses these discovery 
 15   disputes, -- and so far you're one for two, I  think -- there 
 16   will be sanctions payable to the clerk of cou rt for wasting my 
 17   time because you can't cooperate. 
 18            You're getting the W-2's in the way I have just 
 19   ordered.  With that information, is anything else from this 
 20   thing relevant as opposed to what they gave y ou in the past or 
 21   how they screwed you in the past or anything else? 
 22            MS. BAINS:  No, your Honor, that's i t. 
 23            THE COURT:  Good.  Then we are done with this.  Is 
 24   there anything else in this nine-page letter that requires the 
 25   Court to rule?  I'm denying sanctions. 
                     SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P .C. 
                              (212) 805-0300 



                                                                 18 
      C28rdasc 
  1            MS. NURHUSSEIN:  Your Honor, there i s one issue I 
  2   would bring up just briefly that we mentioned  in passing in the 
  3   letter, which is the issue of the deposition schedule.  I know 
  4   your Honor during our first conference instru cted us to work to 
  5   come up with a schedule and to indicate prior ity. 
  6            THE COURT:  Are you in any way able to do that before 
  7   you get the ESI, or is this an issue that we will probably take 
  8   up at our next six conferences? 
  9            MS. NURHUSSEIN:  All I'm asking your  Honor is -- so 
 10   far they have had an opportunity to take virt ually all the 
 11   plaintiff depositions, six of the seven. 
 12            THE COURT:  Stop.  Tell me when you want depositions 
 13   to start?  Do you want them to start next wee k?  I'm order them 
 14   to start next week. 
 15            MS. NURHUSSEIN:  Your Honor, we subm itted a proposed 
 16   deposition schedule with the first deposition  beginning I 
 17   believe on March 22nd.  What we want is MSL t o confirm the 
 18   deposition dates. 
 19            THE COURT:  Even if you don't have t he ESI by then? 
 20            MS. NURHUSSEIN:  What we indicated t o MSL is that all 
 21   of these dates are contingent on us receiving  the data two 
 22   weeks ahead. 
 23            THE COURT:  What's the point?  Your request is denied. 
 24   At this point it's premature.  Or I'll give y ou two choices.  I 
 25   will fix those dates, including quite possibl y saying whatever 
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  1   you ask for in your letter you get but they a re not 
  2   adjournable.  To go through hoops and say thi s person will be 
  3   made available on March 22, whatever date you  said, and the 
  4   next person will be March 24, and then have t he whole thing 
  5   blow up because we haven't talked about and i t's been months 
  6   and months and other than the fact that I'm p robably just going 
  7   to rule on it all today, I hope, you're makin g no progress on 
  8   the ESI.  Once we agree on a protocol, it is not something that 
  9   is likely to get achieved in two minutes. 
 10            MS. NURHUSSEIN:  I understand, your Honor.  The only 
 11   reason I raise it is because -- 
 12            THE COURT:  Do you want a ruling?  T hat's what I'm 
 13   asking you.  If not, it's half an hour into t he conference. 
 14   Tell me what ruling you want. 
 15            MS. NURHUSSEIN:  Your Honor, I think  your ruling from 
 16   earlier today requiring the defendants to res pond in a timely 
 17   manner -- 
 18            THE COURT:  The response now is goin g to be it's 
 19   premature.  Come on.  Somebody practice law.  I'm really not 
 20   happy with this. 
 21            MS. NURHUSSEIN:  I understand, your Honor.  I think we 
 22   can resolve it among ourselves. 
 23            THE COURT:  I doubt you can, but I d on't think you can 
 24   get a court order now, because you don't know  what you want. 
 25            My inclination on all of this is eve n if it requires 
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  1   me to extend the discovery schedule because I 'm having so much 
  2   fun with all of you that I want to keep the p leasure going -- 
  3   note my sarcasm -- I would rather, because of  the expense 
  4   involved here and the size of the case, take this in stages. 
  5   If that means defendants' proposal wins acros s the board, which 
  6   it probably won't, so be it.  Let's get somet hing happening 
  7   with however many custodians that means. 
  8            I must say I have a better memory of  all your letters 
  9   before you all canceled or postponed the conf erence because of 
 10   somebody's availability.  But we will all get  back into it. 
 11   But that is certainly my inclination. 
 12            My second inclination is to remind y ou that at the 
 13   moment the only plaintiffs are the plaintiffs  who are in the 
 14   case.  I'm not giving you discovery as to cla ss issues other 
 15   than whether there should be a class or colle ctive action. 
 16   Basically, as I read some of this, you are go ing on the 
 17   assumption that it's going to be a class and collective action 
 18   on the plaintiffs' side even though you refus e to make a motion 
 19   on that until after all discovery is over, bu t you want all 
 20   discovery on that.  You're not getting it. 
 21            I remind you we talked about this la st time as to the 
 22   date for your motion.  And particularly now t hat the case is no 
 23   longer in front of Judge Sullivan, it seems t o me at least the 
 24   collective action application needs to be mad e very quickly. 
 25   How soon can you do it? 
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  1            MS. NURHUSSEIN:  Your Honor, I'll al low Ms. Wipper to 
  2   address that. 
  3            THE COURT:  Ms. Wipper. 
  4            MS. WIPPER:  Your Honor, we would ob ject to moving the 
  5   briefing schedule to an earlier period given the discovery 
  6   disputes in this case. 
  7            THE COURT:  That wasn't my question.   My question is, 
  8   how soon can you do it?  Democracy ends very quickly here, 
  9   meaning you don't want to give me a date othe r than no later 
 10   than April 1, 2013.  I get to pick the date a nd you get to 
 11   whine to Judge Carter.  Collective action is a very easy 
 12   standard.  The preliminary collective action motion is very 
 13   easy. 
 14            MS. WIPPER:  However, your Honor, it 's not clear what 
 15   standard would be applied to the collective a ction, because 
 16   discovery has already commenced.  In order to  prove a common 
 17   policy as well as pay disparities and to show  that the 
 18   plaintiffs are similarly situated to the othe r public relations 
 19   employees at the company, we would need disco very.  The case 
 20   law has two standards.  It has the conditiona l certification 
 21   standard at the commencement of the action. 
 22            THE COURT:  Ms. Wipper, that's what I'm talking about. 
 23   You haven't had enough discovery to say we ar e beyond that. 
 24   That's the standard.  How soon?  Last chance.  
 25            MS. WIPPER:  Your Honor, there is no  guarantee what 
                     SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P .C. 
                              (212) 805-0300 



                                                                 22 
      C28rdasc 
  1   standard would be applied.  That would be up to Judge Carter. 
  2   Depending on his judgment on the level of dis covery -- 
  3            THE COURT:  Ms. Wipper, your motion is due two weeks 
  4   from today.  Thank you very much for not part icipating.  I'm 
  5   also withdrawing your ability to participate telephonically in 
  6   the future. 
  7            MS. WIPPER:  Your Honor, can I ask y ou to reconsider 
  8   given the fact that we don't have the payroll  data? 
  9            THE COURT:  No.  February 29th.  I'l l give you one 
 10   extra week.  February 29th.  If you don't mov e by that point, 
 11   you never get to move.  Of course, you can do  what you have 
 12   done before, which is take objections to Judg e Carter so he can 
 13   enjoy the fun I'm having with all of you.  If  he affirms me and 
 14   you haven't moved by that point, you don't ge t to ever move, 
 15   period.  That takes care of that. 
 16            MS. WIPPER:  Your Honor, plaintiffs request that you 
 17   issue a written order. 
 18            THE COURT:  You're very close to get ting not only your 
 19   telephone privileges removed but your pro hac  vice removed. 
 20   You have a written order.  It's called the tr anscript.  If you 
 21   want to object to every single ruling I make,  feel free.  The 
 22   rules allow you to do that.  Does it make me happy?  You figure 
 23   that out. 
 24            Would you like to have your pro hac withdrawn or would 
 25   you like to learn the rules of the Southern D istrict of New 
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  1   York, counsel?  Do you want to practice in Ca lifornia?  Do you 
  2   want me to transfer this case to California?  I'd be happy to 
  3   do that.  This is ridiculous, Ms. Wipper.  Do  you have anything 
  4   to say?  Are you there? 
  5            MS. WIPPER:  Yes, I'm here, your Hon or.  No, your 
  6   Honor.  I would just say that we are complyin g fully with the 
  7   local rules of the Southern District of New Y ork as well as 
  8   your individual rules. 
  9            THE COURT:  What local rule says I'v e got to give you 
 10   a written order other than a transcript? 
 11            MS. WIPPER:  I was just requesting i t, your Honor. 
 12            THE COURT:  It's not the first time you have requested 
 13   it and been told we don't do it that way. 
 14            MS. WIPPER:  OK, your Honor. 
 15            THE COURT:  Off the record. 
 16            (Discussion off the record). 
 17            THE COURT:  Do you want to start wit h custodians or 
 18   sources of ESI?  What's your pleasure? 
 19            MR. ANDERS:  Custodians, your Honor,  if you wouldn't 
 20   mind. 
 21            THE COURT:  OK.  Let me get the lett ers organized. 
 22   What is the dispute on custodians?  Let's get  you to summarize 
 23   your positions. 
 24            MR. ANDERS:  Thank you, your Honor.  In short, we 
 25   believe that 30 custodians is more than suffi cient for the 
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  1   first phase of ESI.  Using your Honor's most recent date 
  2   rulings, the 30 custodians that we have sugge sted is 2.5, 
  3   approximately 2.5 million documents.  Those c ustodians consist 
  4   of several high-level officers, including the  president Jim 
  5   Tsokanos, other members of the executive team , the majority of 
  6   the HR staff, including the upper level HR pe ople, and a number 
  7   of managing directors. 
  8            It is our belief that given plaintif fs' theory of the 
  9   case, there was a centralized management team  that directed the 
 10   alleged discriminatory behavior, that this gr oup is the group 
 11   most likely to contain relevant emails and do cuments. 
 12   Certainly if that review identifies other cus todians, we would 
 13   consider reviewing additional custodians.  Bu t we believe the 
 14   appropriate step is to review these 30 custod ians.  Again, that 
 15   date is set after the duplication is approxim ately 2.5 million 
 16   documents. 
 17            THE COURT:  What are the other custo dians that you 
 18   want, Ms. Bains? 
 19            MS. BAINS:  Your Honor, the other cu stodians we want, 
 20   we included one in error, number 41 Donnelly.   That was subject 
 21   to your ruling about entities under MSL, so t hat was in error. 
 22   Other than that, all of the other custodians are managing 
 23   directors.  And the CEO and former CEO of MSL , Olivier Fleurot 
 24   and Mark Haas, who we have emails already sho wing that they 
 25   made decisions that affected employees in Ame rica about pay and 
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  1   promotion, including the pay freeze, we think  those especially. 
  2            THE COURT:  Slow down one minute.  W hich exhibit is 
  3   your custodian list? 
  4            MS. BAINS:  The custodians are liste d at the beginning 
  5   of page 17 of the protocol. 
  6            THE COURT:  Thank you.  How many of these 44, or we 
  7   are now down to 43, are ones that are in disp ute? 
  8            MS. BAINS:  There are 7.  Start with  the ones that are 
  9   starred with the comparators that the parties  agreed last time 
 10   and defense counsel represented to the Court that we would cull 
 11   down those database sets before adding them t o Axcelerate.  It 
 12   seems that defense counsel has withdrawn that . 
 13            THE COURT:  Let's deal with the 7 co mparators. 
 14            MR. ANDERS:  Thank you, your Honor.  If you look at 
 15   the record of the last time we were here, we did not agree to 
 16   do anything.  What we agreed was that we woul d first take a 
 17   look at those accounts and then make the deci sion.  We were 
 18   willing to consider.  We never made an affirm ative agreement to 
 19   do anything. 
 20            Our current position is for these ad ditional people, 
 21   we don't believe they should be included as i t relates to the 
 22   comparators.  Our feeling is that as comparat ors, we don't see 
 23   what in their email accounts could be of rele vance to decisions 
 24   made about them.  Certainly emails from highe r-ups about their 
 25   employment, we have those people.  But I don' t see what in the 
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  1   comparators' email account could be relevant.  
  2            THE COURT:  Ms. Bains? 
  3            MS. BAINS:  On that theory there is a comparator 
  4   already on the defendants' list, number 6, Ke lly Dencker.  If 
  5   we are going to throw out all comparators, we  would like to get 
  6   in all decision-makers instead of taking up a  spot. 
  7            THE COURT:  There is no magic number .  If you're 
  8   telling me you don't want Kelly Dencker even though they wanted 
  9   it, I'm sure they are going to be happy to re duce the list, and 
 10   that will make their list 29 subject to whoev er gets added.  So 
 11   be careful what you wish for.  Let's erase Ke lly Dencker.  Do 
 12   you want Kelly Dencker or not? 
 13            MS. BAINS:  We want Kelly Dencker if  we are going to 
 14   include comparators. 
 15            THE COURT:  Tell me about comparator s, what it is that 
 16   means when you run the same email search. 
 17            I have another case that we have sta lled a few times 
 18   and it is now their turn.  I'm going to put y ou on hold, Ms. 
 19   Wipper.  Ms. Wipper, you're going to have to be disconnected. 
 20   You can call back in 15 minutes. 
 21            MS. WIPPER:  OK, your Honor. 
 22            (Recess) 
 23            MS. BAINS:  I think we were talking about comparators. 
 24   We think that the comparators are important b ecause their 
 25   emails will contain important discussion of t heir job duties, 
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  1   which is directly relevant to the claims, esp ecially for the 
  2   EPA claims. 
  3            THE COURT:  Aren't you better off de posing?  Is there 
  4   any dispute as to what their job duties are? 
  5            MS. BAINS:  Yes.  In the depositions  of the 
  6   plaintiffs, already plaintiffs have claimed t hat some men were 
  7   comparators, and the questioning was geared t owards showing 
  8   that those particular men were not their comp arators based on 
  9   their job duties, etc. 
 10            THE COURT:  I guess my question is, and I'd have to go 
 11   back and look at all your predictive coding a pproach to this, 
 12   unless you run the comparators as a separate unit, are all the 
 13   other things you're asking for the other 30-p lus relevant from 
 14   the comparators?  And by asking for job respo nsibility type 
 15   information through an email search, are you then getting that 
 16   from everybody, including the president of th e company?  I'm 
 17   not quite sure how, since you want different things from these 
 18   people, that would work out. 
 19            MS. BAINS:  We propose to do a targe ted search before 
 20   adding the comparators so that they would be culled down to 
 21   just the issues that would be relevant to com parators before 
 22   they are added. 
 23            THE COURT:  How are you targeting th at search, so to 
 24   speak? 
 25            MS. BAINS:  We wanted to give search  terms to defense 
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  1   counsel, but then defense counsel said they w ere taking them 
  2   off completely.  We would like to create a se arch term list to 
  3   apply to the comparators' mailboxes before th ey are added to 
  4   the Axcelerate system and subjected to predic tive coding. 
  5            THE COURT:  Then what? 
  6            MS. BAINS:  Subject them to predicti ve coding. 
  7            THE COURT:  Subjecting them to predi ctive coding, 
  8   unless you are searching their data for this,  you are reducing 
  9   the volume, but that means that whatever the words are or the 
 10   seeds are is going to run across all 37 to 44  people.  It makes 
 11   no sense to me.  If you want to get your ESI consultant help me 
 12   out, that's fine. 
 13            MS. BAINS:  Yes, please. 
 14            MR. NEALE:  Your Honor, Paul Neale.  I think in this 
 15   instance the way to address that would be to add another 
 16   category to the seed set review that would re late to the issues 
 17   associated with the comparators. 
 18            THE COURT:  What I think I'm hearing , and maybe I'm 
 19   wrong here, it seems to me that the search of  the comparators 
 20   data is totally different from the search of everybody else. 
 21            MR. ANDERS:  Your Honor, not only is  it totally 
 22   different, but if they are looking for emails  which would tend 
 23   to show their job duties, that is going to be  most of their 
 24   emails.  Conceivably, there will be emails sa ying do you want 
 25   to handle this meeting or here is a PowerPoin t for the next 
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  1   presentation.  I am having difficulty even un derstanding how we 
  2   would find those types of emails.  It is almo st every email 
  3   related to their job and what they are doing.  
  4            THE COURT:  Mr. Neale? 
  5            MR. NEALE:  I think there are two ap proaches here, 
  6   your Honor.  We will discuss predictive codin g, but the random 
  7   sampling of the total document set will bring  documents up 
  8   regardless of what search term they were or w eren't responsive 
  9   to, so you will see comparator data during th at process. 
 10            THE COURT:  This is a case where the  plaintiffs worked 
 11   at the company.  What is it that you expect t o see in the 
 12   comparators' email that is relevant?  Describ e the concepts to 
 13   me.  Frankly, I don't disagree that whether t hey are 
 14   comparators or not is a relevant issue, but I  don't see why, if 
 15   you want to find out what their job duties we re and these 
 16   people have no stake in the case, you don't j ust take their 
 17   deposition. 
 18            MS. BAINS:  We do want to take their  depositions.  To 
 19   answer your question about the specific thing s we would be 
 20   looking for, for example, one of the plaintif fs testified about 
 21   her job duties, including client contact.  We  would look for 
 22   client contact in the comparators. 
 23            THE COURT:  That's ridiculous.  That  means basically 
 24   forget sophisticated searches, any email from  one of these 
 25   comparators to or from a client is relevant? 
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  1            MS. BAINS:  I mean on the substantiv e issues regarding 
  2   contacts. 
  3            THE COURT:  How do you train a compu ter for that?  How 
  4   do you do a key word on that?  I'm having a v ery hard time 
  5   seeing what it is you expect.  You've got the  plaintiffs' 
  6   emails.  If you don't have their emails, you have their memory 
  7   of them.  If comparator whoever, Kelly Dencke r, I don't know if 
  8   that is a he Kelly or a she Kelly, but if Kel ly wrote to a 
  9   client and said, I'd like to meet with you ne xt week to discuss 
 10   the following presentation, that's what you'r e looking for? 
 11            MS. BAINS:  That would be part of it . 
 12            THE COURT:  What else?  You keep giv ing me this is 
 13   part of it.  If you want me to order this don e, you've got to 
 14   tell me how it is that it could be done in a reasonable way. 
 15            MS. BAINS:  I think we could treat t he comparators as 
 16   a separate search. 
 17            THE COURT:  Then what is that search  going to be? 
 18   Also, by the way, we've gone from throw the c omparators into 
 19   the bundle but do a little key word screening  first to reduce 
 20   volume to now we are at the let's do the comp arators separate, 
 21   and I'm still not hearing how you're going to  search through 
 22   their emails separately. 
 23            MS. BAINS:  One of our allegations i s that they were 
 24   given opportunities, including job assignment s, etc., that 
 25   plaintiffs weren't. 
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  1            THE COURT:  That is basically every substantive email, 
  2   every business email they have.  All right, c omparators are out 
  3   at this time without prejudice to you coming up with some 
  4   scientific way to get at this.  Otherwise, ta ke the deposition 
  5   and go from there. 
  6            I think we are down to six or seven where you 
  7   disagree. 
  8            MS. BAINS:  There are about eight.  All of the other 
  9   eight are managing directors or the CEO, form er CEO, of the 
 10   company. 
 11            THE COURT:  If the former CEO is bef ore the time 
 12   period that you allege the discrimination sta rted -- 
 13            MS. BAINS:  It's within the class pe riod. 
 14            THE COURT:  When was the last time t he former CEO was 
 15   the CEO? 
 16            MS. BAINS:  2009. 
 17            MR. ANDERS:  April '09. 
 18            THE COURT:  Remind me when the class  period starts 
 19   here. 
 20            MS. BAINS:  2008 for promotions and pregnancy 
 21   discrimination and pay, but 2005 for -- 
 22            THE COURT:  The pay I thought we are  getting at for 
 23   all the payroll data and other things.  What is the anecdotal 
 24   that you are looking for here? 
 25            MS. BAINS:  That's not an issue here . 
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  1            THE COURT:  Good. 
  2            MS. BAINS:  Because he started in 20 09.  I'm sorry. 
  3   He was the CEO until 2009. 
  4            MR. ANDERS:  Your Honor, one maybe v ery practical way 
  5   to resolve the Olivier Fleurot issue.  My und erstanding is that 
  6   the majority or many of these emails are in F rench.  We are not 
  7   able to incorporate him with predictive codin g of the English, 
  8   the majority of the other emails.  I think ju st from a language 
  9   standpoint alone that would warrant not inclu ding in him in the 
 10   first set, if at all. 
 11            MS. BAINS:  I have an email in my ha nd that is in 
 12   English from him. 
 13            THE COURT:  If you want to do a cull  that looks for 
 14   only English language emails and excludes all  the French, 
 15   assuming that that can be done -- can that be  done? 
 16            MR. ANDERS:  I don't know, your Hono r.  I'm not sure 
 17   if that can be done. 
 18            THE COURT:  Tell me who your expert is and let me hear 
 19   from him. 
 20            MR. ANDERS:  This is David Baskin.  He is with 
 21   Recommind. 
 22            THE COURT:  OK. 
 23            MR. BASKIN:  There is a language fil ter that is 
 24   roughly 80 percent accurate in it's associati on of French to 
 25   English. 
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  1            THE COURT:  I'm sorry?  I didn't hea r. 
  2            MR. BASKIN:  In association of Frenc h to English, it 
  3   is 80 percent accurate.  There is a language filter that is 
  4   about 80 percent accurate. 
  5            THE COURT:  Knowing we're not gettin g 100 percent 
  6   accurate, it can filter out all the French em ails with 80 
  7   percent accuracy? 
  8            MR. BASKIN:  Filter out French and E nglish emails as 
  9   well as other languages. 
 10            THE COURT:  Where was this person lo cated and what did 
 11   he do? 
 12            MR. ANDERS:  He was located in Franc e, your Honor. 
 13            MR. BRECHER:  Are we talking about O livier Fleurot? 
 14            THE COURT:  Yes. 
 15            MR. BRECHER:  He is the CEO, and he joined I believe 
 16   it was in May of 2009.  He is located in Pari s. 
 17            THE COURT:  I thought we were talkin g about -- 
 18            MR. BRECHER:  There are two people.  There is Mark 
 19   Haas, who is the former CEO. 
 20            THE COURT:  Who are we talking about ?  I thought we 
 21   were talking with the former CEO. 
 22            MS. BAINS:  I thought we were, too. 
 23            THE COURT:  Come on.  Somebody try t o stay on one 
 24   person.  Mark Haas, who is he, where was he l ocated, why isn't 
 25   he being searched? 
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  1            MR. BRECHER:  He's in New York. 
  2            THE COURT:  Why shouldn't he be sear ched? 
  3            MR. ANDERS:  Your Honor, I think the re are certainly a 
  4   lot of people we could possibly search. 
  5            THE COURT:  Right now the dispute at  4 o'clock is 
  6   apparent between 6 or 7 people, between your list of 30, which 
  7   became 29, and their list of 44, which lost 8  people because 
  8   they were comparators. 
  9            MR. ANDERS:  Your Honor, I think we are starting to 
 10   get duplicative now.  We have Jim Tsokanos.  He is the alleged 
 11   key bad actor.  We have his email accounts.  Certainly emails 
 12   from Mr. Haas and other people will be includ ed in there.  Once 
 13   we see what is in there, maybe we can decide to expand it.  My 
 14   concern right now is the amount of time it ta kes -- 
 15            THE COURT:  What is the volume of Mr . Haas's email? 
 16            MR. ANDERS:  6,098. 
 17            THE COURT:  Include them.  Let's not  fight over the 
 18   miniscule.  Now, who is the Frenchman?  That is Olivier 
 19   Fleurot? 
 20            MR. ANDERS:  Yes. 
 21            THE COURT:  Why is he relevant? 
 22            MS. BAINS:  He is the successor to M ark Haas.  He is 
 23   the CEO of MSL Group.  We have emails from th e few that were 
 24   already produced that show that he had discre tion over pay and 
 25   promotion decisions, particularly a companywi de salary freeze, 
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  1   and he was on correspondence regarding except ions to the salary 
  2   and pay increase freeze.  We think his emails , especially given 
  3   our theory of the case that it is coming from  the highest 
  4   levels of the company, his emails would be on e of the most 
  5   probative. 
  6            MR. ANDERS:  Your Honor, if it is co ming from him, 
  7   then he's obviously directing it to somebody.   Those would be 
  8   the people we already have in the U.S. 
  9            THE COURT:  We have one other issue here, which is if 
 10   his emails are either in France physically or  coming from 
 11   France, you've got the privacy and blocking s tatute.  Let's 
 12   leave him out from the first wave and only de al with his emails 
 13   that are in the U.S. because they went to som ebody else. 
 14            MS. BAINS:  Your Honor, can I have m y expert address 
 15   the issue of phasing of the custodians? 
 16            THE COURT:  Sure. 
 17            MS. BAINS:  And the effect on predic tive coding? 
 18            MR. NEALE:  One of the issues is agr eeing on sources, 
 19   and custodians fall into that.  In the way we  are defining 
 20   phases, I think, as we have been discussing t hem, the protocol 
 21   identifies effectively three phases, phase 1,  phase 2, and a 
 22   to-be-determined phase added by the defendant  in their draft. 
 23            While I think we all agree that a ph ased approach 
 24   makes sense to deal with the high priority st uff immediately 
 25   and factor in the phase 2 stuff, the way that  we have been 
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  1   talking with the defense is their view is we should finish 
  2   phase 1 altogether before even considering wh at falls into 
  3   phase 2 and what to do with it.  Given the ti me line associated 
  4   with this process and the scope of discovery,  I don't see us 
  5   finishing phase 1 before the discovery deadli ne approaches. 
  6            THE COURT:  If that's the only probl em, I'll extend 
  7   the discovery cutoff date. 
  8            MR. ANDERS:  Your Honor, I apologize , but we haven't 
  9   finished the custodians yet. 
 10            THE COURT:  This is custodian-orient ed. 
 11            MR. NEALE:  The suggestion was movin g certain 
 12   custodians into phase 2.  I'm just saying if we add that to the 
 13   sources, among the sources that are phase 2, it raises the 
 14   issue that -- 
 15            THE COURT:  If that's the only probl em, which is 
 16   timing, I can deal with that. 
 17            Two down, four or five to go.  Who i s next? 
 18            MS. BAINS:  All of the others are ma naging directors. 
 19            THE COURT:  Where are they located a nd are they the 
 20   managing directors of any office that a named  plaintiff works 
 21   in? 
 22            MS. BAINS:  The first is Steve Bryan t.  It's managing 
 23   director. 
 24            THE COURT:  Give me the number from your page 17-18. 
 25            MS. BAINS:  Number 32. 
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  1            THE COURT:  What office is he? 
  2            MS. BAINS:  Seattle. 
  3            THE COURT:  Does any plaintiff work in Seattle? 
  4            MS. BAINS:  None of the current plai ntiffs. 
  5            THE COURT:  That's what we are takin g discovery on. 
  6   He's out, as is any other managing director o f an office that 
  7   doesn't have a plaintiff working at it.  Desp ite your colleague 
  8   in San Francisco not liking my approach, that 's why you're 
  9   going to do your conditional certification so oner rather than 
 10   later.  You get some plaintiffs who work in S eattle opting in, 
 11   and we have to reconsider this. 
 12            MS. BAINS:  The next is number 34, C arl Farnham, 
 13   managing director of Atlanta.  We have a plai ntiff from plant a 
 14   who worked in the Atlanta office. 
 15            THE COURT:  During the period that M r. Farnham worked 
 16   there? 
 17            MS. BAINS:  I don't have that inform ation with me. 
 18            MR. ANDERS:  Your Honor, our underst anding is he 
 19   became the managing director in June of 2010,  and at that point 
 20   no plaintiffs were working in the Atlanta off ice. 
 21            THE COURT:  Based on that representa tion, he's out. 
 22   Next. 
 23            MS. BAINS:  The next is Megan Gross.  
 24            THE COURT:  Number 36. 
 25            MR. ANDERS:  Your Honor, she became a managing 
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  1   director in May of 2011, which is after the c utoff date that 
  2   your Honor prescribed on January 4th. 
  3            MS. BAINS:  That issue is with Judge  Carter, so we 
  4   understand that ruling. 
  5            THE COURT:  Then why are you wasting  my time? 
  6            MS. BAINS:  If it's overturned -- 
  7            THE COURT:  If it's overturned, you can make an 
  8   application for me to consider things.  At th e moment I win 
  9   until someone says I don't.  Anyone else? 
 10            MS. BAINS:  The next is number 40, K elly Cohagen, MSL 
 11   Detroit. 
 12            THE COURT:  Have you got a plaintiff  in Detroit? 
 13            MS. BAINS:  No, we don't. 
 14            THE COURT:  My ruling is on any offi ce you don't have 
 15   a plaintiff, you don't get the managing direc tor of that 
 16   office.  Do I have to name each one individua lly? 
 17            MS. BAINS:  No.  That ruling would a lso apply to 
 18   number 42, Michael Morsman. 
 19            THE COURT:  Good. 
 20            MS. BAINS:  Actually, I'm sorry, I m isspoke.  Michael 
 21   Morsman was the managing director of the one of the named 
 22   plaintiffs. 
 23            THE COURT:  Time period, who, what, where, when? 
 24            MS. BAINS:  Plaintiff Laurie Mayers.  
 25            THE COURT:  Mr. Anders, do you want to help out there? 
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  1            MR. ANDERS:  I'm looking, your Honor .  Your Honor, all 
  2   I can tell you is he was hired in January of '09 and terminated 
  3   in May of 2010.  I don't know in that interim  for what period 
  4   of time he was a managing director. 
  5            THE COURT:  Ms. Bains, it's your app lication. 
  6            MS. BAINS:  We are looking to verify  the dates. 
  7            MR. ANDERS:  Your Honor, I will note  that there are no 
  8   allegations in the amended complaint regardin g Mr. Morsman. 
  9            MS. BAINS:  There are.  Paragraph 10 9. 
 10            THE COURT:  I'm sorry.  What? 
 11            MS. BAINS:  There are allegations in  paragraph 109 and 
 12   later. 
 13            THE COURT:  That's not the question.  
 14            MS. BAINS:  Plaintiff Laurie Mayers worked until May 
 15   2010. 
 16            THE COURT:  Any reason Morsman shoul dn't be in?  I 
 17   assume before arguing over this you do have h is email? 
 18            MR. ANDERS:  Yes, your Honor.  We ha ven't collected it 
 19   from the client yet, but it exists, and there  are 29,000. 
 20            THE COURT:  Collect it.  Who else? 
 21            MS. BAINS:  The last is Matthew Gard ner.  We have one 
 22   plaintiff in San Francisco, but I don't belie ve it was during 
 23   the same time period. 
 24            THE COURT:  Then he is out.  We have  now agreed on 
 25   custodians. 
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  1            MS. BAINS:  There is one other issue  with custodians. 
  2   The defense has date-limited many of the cust odians, and we are 
  3   not sure what those date limitations refer to .  I wanted to get 
  4   a little more information on that. 
  5            THE COURT:  Mr. Anders? 
  6            MR. ANDERS:  Yes, your Honor.  The d ate limitations 
  7   generally refer to the period of time for the  managing 
  8   directors that they were overseeing one of th e plaintiffs.  For 
  9   the later set of individuals, and that's numb ers 25 through 29 
 10   on our list, those date limitations correspon d to the Court's 
 11   ruling as it relates to the applicable time p eriod. 
 12            THE COURT:  That makes sense.  The q uestion is for the 
 13   ones that are shorter time periods, such as n umber 21, Donald 
 14   Hannaford, on your list. 
 15            MR. BRECHER:  Judge, this is Jeff Br echer.  Don 
 16   Hannaford was a managing director of the, I b elieve, D.C. 
 17   office.  There is one plaintiff, Heather Pier ce, who moved to 
 18   the D.C. office.  That is the period of time when both were 
 19   employed in the D.C. office.  He left I belie ve in March of 
 20   2008, and she arrived in January of 2008 in t he D.C. office. 
 21   She used to work in the San Francisco office.  
 22            THE COURT:  With those explanations,  any problem with 
 23   the dates? 
 24            MS. BAINS:  No, to be consistent wit h your rulings. 
 25   However, we would like to double-check all th ese facts after. 
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  1            THE COURT:  That's fine. 
  2            MS. BAINS:  Also, can Mr. Brecher ex plain the date 
  3   restrictions for number 23, Neil Dillon?  I t hink the 
  4   explanation was given that a certain plaintif f was there during 
  5   those times, but the dates don't seem to matc h to us. 
  6            MR. BRECHER:  I was speaking about D on Hannaford. 
  7   That's what we were talking about. 
  8            MS. BAINS:  In the last meet-and-con fer. 
  9            MR. BRECHER:  Neil Dillon, I believe , was the next 
 10   managing director in D.C., and I believe that  time period 
 11   reflects the period where he was employed and  where Ms. Pierce 
 12   was employed.  If that is inaccurate, then we  can reconsider, 
 13   but I believe that is accurate. 
 14            MS. BAINS:  Again, like the others, we would like to 
 15   check the facts. 
 16            THE COURT:  You can all check out th e dates.  If there 
 17   is a slight variant, hopefully you can reach agreement.  If 
 18   not, you will bring it back to me. 
 19            MS. BAINS:  Thank you, your Honor. 
 20            THE COURT:  Sources beyond custodian s.  What is this 
 21   sources about laptops or whatever before we g et to predictive 
 22   coding and some of the shared drives and othe r things? 
 23            MS. BAINS:  Plaintiffs would have li ked to have seen 
 24   all of the data or run searches on the data f rom laptops, home 
 25   directories, and desktops.  The defense couns el expressed 
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  1   concern that that would be too burdensome, so  we came up with a 
  2   duplication testing theory.  We suggested 7 c ustodians and they 
  3   suggested 2.  We just think 2 is too little t o do any sort of 
  4   testing, especially as a run against the samp le of the total 
  5   number of custodians is not a significant per centage. 
  6            THE COURT:  When you say home direct ories, are you 
  7   talking about home computers?  No? 
  8            MS. BAINS:  No.  The directories on the work 
  9   computers. 
 10            THE COURT:  I think this may be ones  where the 
 11   consultants are more useful to me than the la wyers.  Let's 
 12   start with Mr. Neale. 
 13            MR. NEALE:  Your Honor, there are ce rtain sources that 
 14   are controlled by custodians, like laptops, d esktops, and the 
 15   home directories are the My Documents folder to which they 
 16   would save information.  In our discussions w ith defendants, 
 17   they represented they thought that that infor mation would be 
 18   wholly duplicative of attachments and things that are in the 
 19   LTA. 
 20            We had suggested early on that we pi ck some number of 
 21   folks and do a comparison between that datase t and what is in 
 22   the LTA to get a sense of the rate of the dup lication.  If it 
 23   was high, then perhaps we would agree that th ose sources don't 
 24   need to be addressed.  Since 
 25            then, we just haven't been able to a gree on the 
                     SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P .C. 
                              (212) 805-0300 



                                                                 43 
      C28rdasc 
  1   number.  As Ms. Bains said, we suggested 7, t hey suggested 2. 
  2   We just don't think 2 will be representative enough to give a 
  3   good sense as to whether they are truly dupli cative or not. 
  4            THE COURT:  Let me hear from -- 
  5            MR. ANDERS:  Your Honor, I don't kno w if we disagree 
  6   on the technical aspect. 
  7            THE COURT:  If you don't disagree on  the technical why 
  8   2/why not 7, why not the old split the baby? 
  9            MR. ANDERS:  Your Honor, if you look  at our letter, we 
 10   don't believe any should be done at this poin t, for a number of 
 11   reasons.  One is if there is a comparison, an d even if it is 
 12   shown that there are some differences in the types of 
 13   documents, the next level of inquiry is, OK, what are the 
 14   different documents that are in the home dire ctories and are 
 15   they even relevant, do we even care about the m? 
 16            Our position is before addressing th e home directories 
 17   or the computers, complete the search of the emails.  Let's 
 18   find out what documents exist there, and then  at that point 
 19   decide is it worth the cost to start looking at the laptops and 
 20   the home directories.  If it is, and we do a comparison, there 
 21   is still -- 
 22            THE COURT:  Did you or did you not a gree to do it at 
 23   one point for 2 custodians? 
 24            MR. ANDERS:  Yes, your Honor, we ini tially suggested 
 25   that. 
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  1            THE COURT:  Do 2 and we will see whe re that goes. 
  2            MR. ANDERS:  OK. 
  3            THE COURT:  What's next? 
  4            MS. BAINS:  The other sources. 
  5            THE COURT:  Where is that in your ex hibit and their 
  6   exhibit? 
  7            MS. BAINS:  In the letters? 
  8            THE COURT:  No.  I know where it is in the letters. 
  9   There are all sorts of lists. 
 10            MS. BAINS:  In the protocol it begin s on page 3.  My 
 11   expert can speak to the phasing and technical  aspects.  If we 
 12   want to go source by source and talk about th e substance of the 
 13   sources, I can address that. 
 14            THE COURT:  I think I want to talk a bout the substance 
 15   of the sources.  What page is it on your Exhi bit D on the 
 16   defense side? 
 17            MS. BAINS:  We submitted a joint pro tocol on January 
 18   25th.  It was an attachment to plaintiff's le tter. 
 19            THE COURT:  That's what I'm looking at or not? 
 20            MS. BAINS:  Yes. 
 21            MR. ANDERS:  Pages 3 and 4, your Hon or, of the joint 
 22   protocol.  The first chart is plaintiffs' pro posal.  The second 
 23   chart is ours.  If it makes it easier, your H onor, I could 
 24   explain the, I think, 6 items we differ on. 
 25            THE COURT:  That's all I need to kno w about. 
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  1            MR. ANDERS:  There was the home dire ctories, which 
  2   your Honor just addressed.  The next would be  the shared 
  3   folders.  These are folders that different gr oups have shared 
  4   access to.  Plaintiffs had asked for a direct ory tree of all 
  5   these shared folders within MSL.  We spoke to  the IT 
  6   department, and they said that is not somethi ng that they can 
  7   easily generate. 
  8            We located HR shared drives.  These are shared drives 
  9   issued by the HR department.  There is a corp orate HR drive, 
 10   there is a North America HR drive, and then t here are several 
 11   local drives.  What we proposed was doing a m anual review of 
 12   all the documents in the corporate and North America as well as 
 13   New York HR drive for documents.  The types o f documents, your 
 14   Honor, that are in these folders, there are t emplates, there 
 15   are form letters, there are some training pro grams, there are 
 16   some other general HR documents. 
 17            We also have the shared drives for s ome of the other 
 18   local offices.  All told, if you take everyth ing we have, that 
 19   is 40,000 documents.  We are proposing to tak e the corporate 
 20   and North America, which are the more general  HR drives, plus 
 21   the New York One, review those manually.  Bas ed on the theory 
 22   of the case, we would think that the general HR directories 
 23   would be the ones most relevant and review th ose three main 
 24   ones and do that outside of the predictive co ding. 
 25            THE COURT:  Let's take this in two s teps.  For HR, are 
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  1   there other shared folders you want reviewed?  
  2            MS. BAINS:  Yes, the local folders a t least. 
  3            THE COURT:  Whose local folders? 
  4            MS. BAINS:  The local HR folders. 
  5            THE COURT:  What is in the shared ma terial?  It seems 
  6   to me if we are talking about forms and templ ates, doing the 
  7   corporate, New York America, and New York pro bably is enough. 
  8   If you are telling me these are also where pe ople do shared 
  9   work type material, that's a different story.  
 10            MS. BAINS:  We deposed the HR direct or last week, and 
 11   she noted that a lot of complaints don't even  come to her, that 
 12   she is in New York, and that the local HR peo ple deal with 
 13   them. 
 14            THE COURT:  Would it be in the share d folder? 
 15            MS. BAINS:  I think you would have t o ask defense, 
 16   because we don't have access and they haven't  given us a 
 17   directory listing. 
 18            THE COURT:  It would really be nice if you folks 
 19   talked to each other substantively.  What's i n the shared 
 20   folders?  Let's limit it to HR for the moment . 
 21            MR. ANDERS:  Other than what I have represented 
 22   before, your Honor -- 
 23            THE COURT:  Let me put it a differen t way.  If an 
 24   employee made some sort of complaint to HR ab out 
 25   discrimination, pay issues, or whatever, and for whatever 
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  1   reason it crossed two offices or more than on e person was 
  2   working on handling the matter, would that be  in a shared 
  3   folder? 
  4            MR. ANDERS:  I don't know, your Hono r.  I can tell you 
  5   from my cursory general review going through folders, I didn't 
  6   see anything like that.  There are thousands of folders, and I 
  7   didn't review every one.  I don't know the an swer to that 
  8   question. 
  9            THE COURT:  I understand that.  But they are your 
 10   clients.  At the moment I can't rule on the s hared folders 
 11   until somebody tells me what's in it.  Right now the shared 
 12   folders are up in the air except for the thre e that they have 
 13   agreed to include in phase 1. 
 14            MR. ANDERS:  Your Honor, thank you.  Just so I'm clear 
 15   about the ones we are reviewing in phase 1, I  don't believe we 
 16   are going to review every single document, bu t certainly we are 
 17   going to look at the folders.  If a certain f older has ten 
 18   documents of a certain type not relevant, we are going to move 
 19   on.  We are going to do it judgmentally. 
 20            THE COURT:  You are going to do it j udgmentally with 
 21   the assistance of your clients. 
 22            MS. BAINS:  Your Honor, for the othe r non-HR folders, 
 23   we need some sort of indication of what's in there. 
 24            THE COURT:  Either you folks are goi ng to talk to each 
 25   other and develop the information cooperative ly or you're going 
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  1   to spend the money and take a 30(b)(6) deposi tion or hundreds 
  2   of 30(b)(6) depositions.  They are only sayin g it doesn't go in 
  3   phase 1, it goes in phase 2, so already you m ay be getting it. 
  4            Number two, I can't rule until I kno w what you mean by 
  5   shared folders.  In some corporations the sha red folders are 
  6   templates and the like that somebody then pul ls down off the 
  7   shared folders onto their drive and then uses  to create a memo 
  8   or an action or whatever.  In other companies  people do 
  9   document drafting collectively. 
 10            I have no idea what you are talking about here. 
 11   Absent information, it stays in round 2.  In the meantime, talk 
 12   to each other. 
 13            What's the next category? 
 14            MR. ANDERS:  Your Honor, the next ca tegory is the 
 15   company's corporate intranet otherwise known as Noovoo, 
 16   N-O-O-V-O-O.  We explain in page 9 of our Jan uary 25th letter 
 17   at page 10, that the type of information in N oovoo is general 
 18   information for employees.  This includes pre ss releases and 
 19   other company notices, for example, notices r egarding upcoming 
 20   system maintenance, an employee directory. 
 21            There are more form documents and te mplates, such as 
 22   sample PowerPoint decks, electronic company l ogos that can be 
 23   used.  There is information regarding company  contests, job 
 24   openings, information about the worldwide off ices.  It's 
 25   generalized employee information. 
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  1            THE COURT:  Job openings may be the only thing that 
  2   sounds relevant out of that, and even that is  questionable. 
  3            Ms. Bains? 
  4            MS. BAINS:  Your Honor, counsel also  told us that 
  5   there are employment policies in Noovoo.  Als o, the HR deponent 
  6   said that she accesses Noovoo to get employme nt policies.  We 
  7   think those are relevant. 
  8            MR. ANDERS:  We have given employmen t policies.  They 
  9   may exist in Noovoo, but they I believe would  exist elsewhere. 
 10   They have asked for employment policies.  We have given them. 
 11   Now we are focusing on searching the intranet , which is another 
 12   place where certain information is stored. 
 13            THE COURT:  Search Noovoo for any do cuments that are 
 14   employment policies documents.  It may be red undant, but there 
 15   is no way to know that unless you do it. 
 16            Is there anything else, Ms. Bains, f rom what you have 
 17   learned that seems relevant in this? 
 18            MS. BAINS:  That's all from what we have learned. 
 19            THE COURT:  Your clients worked ther e.  I know they 
 20   didn't necessarily work in every department.  But if you can't 
 21   give me a basis for saying that the defendant s are wrong -- and 
 22   in this case I'm not saying you will never ge t it, the issue is 
 23   is it a phase 1 or phase 2 or phase 3 approac h -- it seems to 
 24   me, considering how expensive this case is al ready going to be 
 25   for discovery, under 26(b)(2)(C) you have not  met your burden. 
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  1            MS. BAINS:  Can we clarify the phase ?  I think the 
  2   parties have a different opinion. 
  3            THE COURT:  You're going to finish p hase 1 ESI 
  4   production.  You're going to have a chance to  review that.  We 
  5   are going to set a deadline for it once we fi nish the rest of 
  6   the ramifications that you are in dispute ove r.  Then we are 
  7   going to do phase 1. 
  8            If as a result of phase 1, depending  on both the cost 
  9   to the defendants, the information developed,  and everything 
 10   else, it is appropriate to go to phase 2 or 3 , we'll go there. 
 11   If it isn't, it may be that you will do depos itions in between, 
 12   and only if you develop through the depositio n enough 
 13   information that shows we should spend the mo ney to go past the 
 14   phase 1, will we do so. 
 15            I can't determine what we are going to do.  There is 
 16   no sense in getting to phase 2 earlier than t he completion of 
 17   phase 1 or it defeats the whole purpose of ph asing, which is to 
 18   see what is out there. 
 19            MS. BAINS:  I understand.  I just ha d the impression 
 20   that the defense's proposal was to do email o nly as phase 1 and 
 21   everything after if costs allowed. 
 22            THE COURT:  I'm going on what you ar e all telling me, 
 23   which is what you are in dispute on.  Reading  defendants' 
 24   position and your position, it seems like the re is a lot of 
 25   stuff in phase 1, such as Prism, PeopleSoft, corporate 
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  1   feedback, Halogen, EMC SourceOne archive, and  others. 
  2            MR. ANDERS:  That's correct, your Ho nor. 
  3            MS. BAINS:  Thank you. 
  4            THE COURT:  What else is in dispute?  
  5            MR. ANDERS:  The last item in disput e is a system 
  6   called Hyperion Financial Management.  That i s the company's 
  7   financial management program.  That's where t hey have their P&L 
  8   information.  When we were here on January 4t h, we had 
  9   discussed this system in particular.  The que stion that Ms. 
 10   Wipper had was whether it contained informati on regarding 
 11   budgets, bonus pools, and personnel costs. 
 12            We inquired and found out that it do es not contain 
 13   that information on an individualized level b ut rather more on 
 14   a high-level and general basis.  I don't see how that type of 
 15   information, what their bonus pool or the per sonnel costs are, 
 16   is relevant to this case. 
 17            MS. BAINS:  Your Honor, this is a cl ass case, so we 
 18   are alleging high-level -- 
 19            THE COURT:  No, it's not.  You refus ed to move in any 
 20   way, shape, or form unless I beat you over th e head to try to 
 21   get the court to certify a class of any sort or even a 
 22   collective action.  Right now it's an action by whatever the 
 23   number is, half a dozen, individual plaintiff s who hope someday 
 24   that you will make a motion for class certifi cation. 
 25            In any event, what difference does i t make, even if 
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  1   this were classwide, if, as they seem to be d escribing it, it 
  2   shows that the budget for bonuses for the com pany for the year 
  3   2009 was $1 million or $100 million?  The iss ue is did your 
  4   plaintiffs get a fair share of that compared to their 
  5   comparators. 
  6            MS. BAINS:  We anticipate that one o f the business 
  7   justifications will be that they just didn't have the money to 
  8   pay people. 
  9            THE COURT:  That's not anything I've  heard in the 
 10   case.  Is that one of the justifications?  We  have an answer. 
 11   It would seem to me that that would be someth ing that is an 
 12   affirmative or other defense that would have been included in 
 13   the answer. 
 14            MR. ANDERS:  I think what the plaint iffs may be 
 15   getting at is there was a salary freeze impos ed at some point. 
 16   Whether or not the it was a good decision or bad decision to 
 17   freeze the salary, they imposed a salary free ze.  I don't think 
 18   this case is about whether or not that was a good decision. 
 19            THE COURT:  I assume the freeze appl ied to everybody 
 20   of every sex, age, and other protected class.  
 21            MR. ANDERS:  Yes, your Honor. 
 22            MS. BAINS:  We have emails showing t hat exceptions 
 23   were made. 
 24            THE COURT:  The exceptions may be re levant.  What the 
 25   total pool was or what the policy was has not hing to do with 
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  1   the budget documents.  What am I missing? 
  2            MS. BAINS:  We believe the budget is  closely tied to 
  3   compensation policies.  If there is informati on in there about 
  4   what part of the budget is going to go to com pensation, we 
  5   think that would be relevant. 
  6            THE COURT:  The request is denied.  It's ridiculous. 
  7   What else?  Are we done with the sources? 
  8            MR. ANDERS:  I believe so, your Hono r. 
  9            THE COURT:  Good.  What's next? 
 10            MS. BAINS:  I'm sorry.  I think ther e was actually one 
 11   more, Vurv Taleo, that was in this. 
 12            THE COURT:  That's L on your list, t alent recruitment 
 13   software. 
 14            MS. BAINS:  I understand that that c ontains 
 15   information about job descriptions and job du ties. 
 16            MR. ANDERS:  Your Honor, that is ess entially an 
 17   applicant tracking program.  It tracks an app licant through the 
 18   hiring process, sort of the date that they ap plied, the date 
 19   they had this interview, the date they had th e next interview. 
 20   Again, it's more of a tracking program. 
 21            THE COURT:  Does it say in doing tha t we're tracking 
 22   Sherlock Holmes, who applied for the job of c onsulting 
 23   detective, and that job has the following req uirements, and 
 24   then we interviewed him on such and such a da te?  Or is it 
 25   merely person, position, and date tracks? 
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  1            MR. ANDERS:  Your Honor, it will tra ck specific 
  2   individuals. 
  3            THE COURT:  Does it have anything ab out what the job 
  4   description for the job they are applying for  is? 
  5            MR. ANDERS:  I don't believe it does , your Honor.  The 
  6   individualized forms.  If Sherlock Holmes was  applying for a 
  7   job and there was a printout on Sherlock Holm es's information, 
  8   that does not have any information like a job  description.  It 
  9   identifies the position, but it generally is a time line of on 
 10   what days various -- this would be really ind ividualized 
 11   discovery. 
 12            THE COURT:  Ms. Bains? 
 13            MS. BAINS:  I have a question.  Does  this system also 
 14   track current employees and promotions? 
 15            MR. ANDERS:  It would track anybody that applied for a 
 16   position, whether it's internal or not. 
 17            MS. BAINS:  That's relevant.  It's s imilar to the data 
 18   provided by PeopleSoft for promotions analysi s. 
 19            THE COURT:  You have it with the oth er system.  There 
 20   has to be a limit to redundancy here. 
 21            MS. BAINS:  Not the job qualificatio ns.  That's not in 
 22   PeopleSoft. 
 23            THE COURT:  That's not in this, eith er.  Please listen 
 24   to each other. 
 25            MS. BAINS:  The job qualifications o f the applicant? 
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  1            THE COURT:  Who cares? 
  2            MS. BAINS:  It would be relevant if somebody is denied 
  3   a promotion. 
  4            THE COURT:  If you're telling me tha t your plaintiff 
  5   applied for a particular position and you're comparing who was 
  6   hired for it, that's relevant perhaps, if tha t's your theory. 
  7   I don't think it is.  But that is not going t o be done through 
  8   the Vurv Taleo system necessarily.  I didn't hear anything here 
  9   about it has the qualifications of the person  applying.  Did I 
 10   miss something? 
 11            MR. ANDERS:  No, your Honor. 
 12            MS. BAINS:  The HR deponent testifie d that job 
 13   applications and rsums could be accessed thro ugh Vurv Taleo. 
 14            MR. ANDERS:  Again, your Honor, what  I'm looking at is 
 15   something that could be exported and printed out.  I asked for 
 16   a printout of what would a printout look like  if I asked for 
 17   all information on a particular individual.  I received a 
 18   sample report, and that's what I'm looking at . 
 19            THE COURT:  Let me see the sample.  Is any of this 
 20   click-through?  What I mean by that is, for e xample, it shows 
 21   that so and so, quote, submitted profile.  If  I clicked on that 
 22   and I were on the system live, would that bri ng up the profile? 
 23            MR. ANDERS:  I don't know, your Hono r. 
 24            THE COURT:  Why don't you show this to Ms. Bains and 
 25   see if that satisfies everybody that this sys tem need not be 
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  1   included.  Now give the document back. 
  2            MS. BAINS:  We ask that MSL verify t hat there are no 
  3   rsums or job descriptions and that -- 
  4            THE COURT:  Come on.  Job descriptio ns, you just 
  5   looked at the document.  This is the best way  to resolve a lot 
  6   of this stuff, to look at samples in the syst em.  The only 
  7   thing there might be is the job application, what is called the 
  8   submitted profile, and I fail to see the rele vance of that 
  9   unless it is for a candidate who applied for the same job as 
 10   your client and your client didn't get it.  A nd I don't even 
 11   believe that is one of the allegations in the  case as to 
 12   specific jobs as opposed to glass ceiling typ e issues in 
 13   general perhaps. 
 14            MS. BAINS:  I believe we do have all egations about 
 15   certain promotions that were denied to plaint iffs. 
 16            THE COURT:  Then give them a list of  those promotions 
 17   and if the Vurv Taleo system will show who el se applied for 
 18   that job.  Again, unless it also gives the pr ofile, i.e., job 
 19   application of the person, it doesn't do the least bit of good. 
 20            MS. BAINS:  That's fine. 
 21            MR. ANDERS:  Your Honor, so I'm clea r, within the 
 22   system you can although search based on a spe cific position, 
 23   not individual, that will have a job descript ion.  My 
 24   understanding is we have already provided job  descriptions.  If 
 25   their allegation is there was a specific posi tion that they 
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  1   were denied, we could search for that specifi c position. 
  2            MS. BAINS:  That's fine. 
  3            THE COURT:  That's how that will be handled, not part 
  4   of the general protocol.  That finishes the s ources, at least 
  5   as to the dispute between phase 1 and phase 2 . 
  6            What's next? 
  7            MR. ANDERS:  I think the actual prot ocol, your Honor, 
  8   on the application of predictive coding. 
  9            THE COURT:  What page are we on on t he joint proposal? 
 10            MR. ANDERS:  That begins, your Honor , at page 20, I 
 11   believe. 
 12            MS. BAINS:  Yes, page 20. 
 13            THE COURT:  Since you all did this m ostly in 
 14   narrative, I guess if I look at number 3, tha t will take me 
 15   through the specific? 
 16            MR. ANDERS:  Yes. 
 17            THE COURT:  What is the best way to figure out where 
 18   you disagree?  Whatever you agree on, I'm hap py to let you 
 19   agree upon. 
 20            MS. BAINS:  I think it might make se nse for us to each 
 21   give a presentation of our position. 
 22            THE COURT:  I'd rather do it issue b y issue.  If you 
 23   give me your position with five to ten subpar ts, by the time 
 24   you finish and they respond, it's going to be  very hard for me 
 25   to rule.  So issue by issue. 
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  1            MS. BAINS:  May I have my expert add ress this? 
  2            THE COURT:  Yes. 
  3            MR. NEALE:  Your Honor, I think perh aps the best place 
  4   to start is at the beginning of the process, which would in my 
  5   view and I think in our discussions with defe ndants be at the 
  6   point at which we determine what the confiden ce level within 
  7   the predictive coding system will be set at. 
  8            There has been a lot of discussion b etween us about 
  9   their use of 95 percent plus or minus 2, whic h drives the 
 10   sample size that is going to be used at the v arious stages. 
 11   Leaving the last conference, we were I think close to an 
 12   agreement on the overall approach.  The recen t submission I 
 13   think took a pretty sharp 180 away from it. 
 14            THE COURT:  Don't be a lawyer, be a tech person. 
 15   We're doing one issue at a time.  95 percent confidence level 
 16   of what? 
 17            MR. NEALE:  At a 95 percent confiden ce level against 
 18   the number of documents in the system.  The s ample size would 
 19   be 2,399 documents. 
 20            THE COURT:  Go slowly.  Two thousand  what? 
 21            MR. NEALE:  399 documents. 
 22            THE COURT:  OK. 
 23            MR. NEALE:  The first point at which  that would be 
 24   applied would be the initial random sample, w hich is used to 
 25   determine and give you a sense based on the r eview of those 
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  1   documents what the likely percentage of relev ance will be. 
  2   It's also used, in my understanding, as one o f the components 
  3   of the seed set that starts to train the syst em as to how you 
  4   train relevance in the categories. 
  5            THE COURT:  Let me back up one secon d.  Are you all 
  6   talking about training the seed set through a  random sample or 
  7   through a nonrandom sample based on already h aving found, 
  8   through one method or another, certain key do cuments? 
  9            MR. NEALE:  We are actually a great deal ahead of that 
 10   process.  You have your entire document colle ction.  You 
 11   randomly sample 2399 using that confidence le vel.  At that 
 12   point you do a review and determine what is r elevant and 
 13   what -- 
 14            THE COURT:  That's if you're doing a  random sample 
 15   seed. 
 16            MR. NEALE:  We already agreed that t hat would be at a 
 17   random sample level. 
 18            MR. ANDERS:  I think this is maybe w here we are 
 19   disagreeing.  The way I understand and the wa y we have prepared 
 20   the protocol, and the more recent one was des igned to take some 
 21   of your Honor's comments, the very first step  is a pure random 
 22   sample to get an understanding of how many re levant documents 
 23   are likely in the corpus.  Not which ones, ju st likely how 
 24   many.  That is where we used the 95 percent c onfidence level 
 25   plus or minus 2 percent as the confidence int erval, which I 
                     SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P .C. 
                              (212) 805-0300 



                                                                 60 
      C28rdasc 
  1   understand is the industry standard.  That is  just an initial 
  2   random sample to get a sense of what percenta ge of documents 
  3   are likely relevant in the system. 
  4            Yes, we will use the coding of that as part of the 
  5   ultimate training.  But once we move beyond t hat random sample, 
  6   the way we propose doing these seed sets -- 
  7            THE COURT:  Now I see what page you are both on.  The 
  8   difference seems to be 99 percent versus 95 p ercent. 
  9            MR. NEALE:  Actually, if we limit it  to this, I think 
 10   Mr. Anders explained it exactly the way I did , and we have an 
 11   agreement as to what constitutes the random s ample for the 
 12   initial random sample set. 
 13            THE COURT:  That's the 2399. 
 14            MR. NEALE:  Yes. 
 15            THE COURT:  That's not what your law yers wrote to me, 
 16   but OK. 
 17            MR. NEALE:  Actually in the conferen ce we had we 
 18   agreed to that number.  And we in our letter indicate that we 
 19   would, if other components of their process w ere changed, in 
 20   taking it a step at a time, I'd say -- 
 21            THE COURT:  Good.  Everybody agrees on the 2399, 
 22   what's next? 
 23            MR. NEALE:  However, your Honor, the y have already 
 24   conducted the review of those 2399 documents without taking 
 25   into account the entire corpus of documents, which makes that 
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  1   set not as random and not taking into account  the two 
  2   additional categories. 
  3            THE COURT:  Despite my ESI expertise , you're going 
  4   much too fast. 
  5            MR. NEALE:  I'm sorry. 
  6            THE COURT:  Dumb it down.  You both agreed to use a 
  7   2399 random sample. 
  8            MR. NEALE:  Yes. 
  9            THE COURT:  What did they do to that  that you don't 
 10   like? 
 11            MR. NEALE:  They reviewed that sampl e set in advance 
 12   of our discussion. 
 13            THE COURT:  Advance what have? 
 14            MR. NEALE:  Of us agreeing on that n umber and -- 
 15            THE COURT:  What's the difference? 
 16            MR. NEALE:  -- and, importantly, the  categories that 
 17   would be reviewed for during the process. 
 18            THE COURT:  By categories, you mean?  
 19            MR. NEALE:  The seven subjective cat egories that are a 
 20   critical component of training the system.  W e had just 
 21   suggested, and I thought we had agreed, that those 2399 would 
 22   be rereviewed to take into account all the ca tegories so the 
 23   system was properly trained at the first step . 
 24            THE COURT:  It seems that your issue  tags or whatever 
 25   it is you're doing here -- I'm having a hard time figuring out 
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  1   where you agree and where you disagree. 
  2            MR. ANDERS:  Your Honor, I'll make i t simpler if I 
  3   can.  On the random sample, we conducted the random sample when 
  4   there were 2.9 million documents in the syste m.  We were just 
  5   trying to get started in doing some of the wo rk.  An additional 
  6   400, 300,000 have since been added. 
  7            Plaintiffs' position is because you did that random 
  8   sample before an additional 300,000 documents  were added to the 
  9   2.9 million, your random sample isn't valid.  I understand, in 
 10   consulting with our vendor, that adding that number of 
 11   documents to that large database already does n't really impact 
 12   the validity of the sample. 
 13            The other difference is since we hav e done that 
 14   sample, two issue codes were added, so that s ample doesn't have 
 15   those two issue codes.  But that is more for the training of 
 16   the system.  Our position is when we do furth er training and 
 17   incorporate those additional two concept grou ps, it will 
 18   eventually catch up; it's not necessary to go  back and do 
 19   another random sample because we have added 3 00,000 documents 
 20   to 2.9 million and because we have added two concept groups. 
 21            THE COURT:  As to the 300,000 additi onal documents, 
 22   would it help plaintiffs to take whatever the  appropriate 
 23   random sample is of the 300,000 and review th at? 
 24            MR. BASKIN:  If I may? 
 25            THE COURT:  Or are they now so mixed  in? 
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  1            MR. BASKIN:  It won't make a differe nce.  The random 
  2   sample is still going to be 2399.  What happe ns is once the 
  3   categories are reviewed of those 2399, you ca n retrain the 
  4   system when the 300,000 additional documents are added, and the 
  5   similar documents will indeed make it into th ose categories 
  6   without a rereview. 
  7            THE COURT:  That I understand. 
  8            MR. NEALE:  That we don't disagree w ith.  However, the 
  9   system is only as good as the training that i t gets. 
 10            THE COURT:  I agree. 
 11            MR. NEALE:  This issue of recoding d ocuments will come 
 12   up through our entire process here. 
 13            THE COURT:  Let me ask you this.  Ot her than however 
 14   many of the 2399 get pulled for privilege, an d since you both, 
 15   as I recall your protocols, are taking a fair ly transparent 
 16   view, am I remembering correctly that plainti ffs' counsel are 
 17   going to be allowed to review the 2399 that y ou have coded? 
 18            MR. ANDERS:  Yes, your Honor. 
 19            MR. NEALE:  We don't expect necessar ily to have an 
 20   issue with the way in which they were coded.  We take issue 
 21   with how they get applied and therefore itera tively trained and 
 22   educate the system. 
 23            THE COURT:  To the extent that two n ew subject matter 
 24   codes or whatever, I take it -- I won't say " I take it," 
 25   because I'm not sure I take anything the way you are all 
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  1   explaining it -- does that change the relevan ce?  In other 
  2   words, will it move a document from relevant to nonrelevant or, 
  3   rather, probably the other way around, or wil l it just deal 
  4   with the issue codes that you can separate wh at documents are 
  5   relevant to out of the relevant group? 
  6            MR. NEALE:  We believe that the two categories are new 
  7   categories of relevance that would have not o therwise been 
  8   captured during the initial review. 
  9            MR. ANDERS:  Your Honor, how about t his?  Since we are 
 10   going to provide those 2399 to them anyway, t hey are going to 
 11   review them to make sure that we coded them r elevant or not 
 12   relevant correctly.  If there are any that th ey think should go 
 13   into those two new categories, they can tell us, and we'll make 
 14   those designations in the system. 
 15            THE COURT:  Does that work? 
 16            MR. NEALE:  As it relates to this sa mple, it would. 
 17            THE COURT:  Good.  What's the next i ssue where you 
 18   disagree? 
 19            MR. ANDERS:  I think it would be the  true creation now 
 20   of the seed set.  There is one area where we did all agree on 
 21   that, and that was the judgmental sampling th at we have done. 
 22   Those documents have been coded and entered. 
 23            The remainder of how the seed set wi ll be created is 
 24   defendants had a list of key words.  There we re hits.  We 
 25   reviewed several thousand of those hits, enco ded them.  That's 
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  1   attached I think as Exhibit B to the protocol .  It shows the 
  2   key words that we used and how we judgmentall y sampled those 
  3   and the number of documents we coded as being  relevant. 
  4            THE COURT:  Wait.  I think it's your  Exhibit C, not D. 
  5            MR. ANDERS:  On the joint protocol I  think it would be 
  6   Exhibit B.  Exhibit A is our key words.  Exhi bit B is a 
  7   document we provided the plaintiffs which sho wed basically our 
  8   analysis of our review of our key words. 
  9            THE COURT:  Right.  I'm sorry.  Are you saying B as in 
 10   "boy" is what I should be looking at? 
 11            MR. ANDERS:  B as in "boy."  Sorry. 
 12            THE COURT:  OK. 
 13            MR. ANDERS:  That is defendants' hal f of the training. 
 14   What we would do is all the documents that we  marked relevant 
 15   here except for the privileged ones we would turn over to 
 16   plaintiffs' counsel. 
 17            I think plaintiffs' issue on this is  because we 
 18   conducted this review prior to the inclusion of the two 
 19   additional issue codes, all of these document s would not have 
 20   been coded for those two new codes.  I think we can address 
 21   this the same way as we addressed the random sample.  When we 
 22   turn over these documents to plaintiffs, if d uring their review 
 23   they believe that any of them fall within tho se two new codes, 
 24   they can advise us. 
 25            THE COURT:  Wait.  On these email hi ts from Exhibit B, 
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  1   are you giving them everything the key word h it or are you just 
  2   giving them what you reduced from that?  I'm not sure I 
  3   followed you. 
  4            MR. ANDERS:  Just from what we reduc ed.  There were so 
  5   many hits, we did not review every single hit .  For example, if 
  6   you look at the first page of Exhibit B, the initial term we 
  7   used was "training." 
  8            THE COURT:  Right. 
  9            MR. ANDERS:  Going back to Exhibit A , the term 
 10   "training" resulted in 165,000 hits.  What we  then did was we 
 11   connected "training" with "Da Silva Moore," " Mayers."  That 
 12   second column shows all of the terms that we then did an "and" 
 13   search essentially.  We show next the documen t count, and we 
 14   reviewed the top 50 ranked.  What we reviewed  were the top 
 15   ranked. 
 16            THE COURT:  All the ones you reviewe d, whether you 
 17   then coded them responsive or not, you're goi ng to give them to 
 18   review, other than privileged? 
 19            MR. ANDERS:  Yes. 
 20            MR. NEALE:  I think our only issue t here is that 
 21   what's being reviewed are those results of th e search that was 
 22   used to bring back those documents.  Again, t hat search did not 
 23   apply against at least 300 and now growing nu mber of documents. 
 24            THE COURT:  Once you get your seed s et, that will pull 
 25   in the 300,000 extra documents. 
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  1            MR. NEALE:  However, your seed set i s determined based 
  2   on a sample of the documents that you have re viewed. 
  3            THE COURT:  Once you are out of rand om sample, you're 
  4   just getting documents to train the system. 
  5            MR. ANDERS:  Your Honor, importantly  -- 
  6            THE COURT:  You're winning.  You tal k and you might 
  7   lose. 
  8            MR. NEALE:  However, your random sam ple is not 
  9   reflective if it's not taken into account all  of the documents. 
 10            THE COURT:  Is there any reason to t hink that 300,000 
 11   documents are different than the other 2.9 mi llion? 
 12            MR. NEALE:  I think there is, and I think the effort 
 13   to rereview that number of documents does not  outweigh the 
 14   value of getting it right. 
 15            THE COURT:  What number of documents ? 
 16            MR. NEALE:  Reapplying the search an d rereviewing in 
 17   the initial sample the 2399 which we have mov ed on from, but 
 18   now this seed set, load the documents, resear ch the documents, 
 19   and do your search again.  This is a critical  component of the 
 20   process. 
 21            THE COURT:  How many documents?  I'm  looking at the 
 22   first page, which already is several hundred,  maybe a thousand 
 23   documents.  If you had to redo all of these - - 
 24            MR. BASKIN:  May I? 
 25            THE COURT:  Yes, sir, please.  I'm s orry.  I need your 
                     SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P .C. 
                              (212) 805-0300 



                                                                 68 
      C28rdasc 
  1   name again. 
  2            MR. BASKIN:  David.  David Baskin.  B-A-S-K-I-N. 
  3            THE COURT:  Mr. Baskin. 
  4            MR. BASKIN:  Once you go through the  random sample and 
  5   you do any kind of seeding of a particular ca tegory, the 
  6   training algorithm will actually return all o f the relevant 
  7   documents of the 300,000.  You can do this ov er and over and it 
  8   continues to iterate.  Our system is a learni ng process.  It 
  9   goes over time and it will pull in those docu ments. 
 10            As compared to other systems that ma y be compared to 
 11   ours, they have to do everything up front.  T here is no need to 
 12   do everything up front.  You can learn as you  go within the 
 13   Recommind Axcelerate system, and all the rele vant documents 
 14   will be pulled in over time through the vario us iterations. 
 15            THE COURT:  Where do the extra 300,0 00 documents come 
 16   from? 
 17            MR. ANDERS:  They came from the emai l accounts of -- 
 18            MS. BAINS:  I believe they were new HR custodians, so 
 19   they would be largely different. 
 20            THE COURT:  Why would they be largel y different? 
 21            MS. BAINS:  Because they probably co ntain mostly 
 22   complaints. 
 23            MR. ANDERS:  Your Honor, let me go b ack.  Plaintiffs 
 24   also provided us with three different iterati ons of their key 
 25   words.  The last round of that was applied ag ainst the full 
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  1   dataset, which includes those additional 300, 000.  We still 
  2   have to review a portion of plaintiffs' key w ord hits which are 
  3   based off of that larger database. 
  4            Our position is that half of the see d set creation 
  5   which is the result of plaintiffs' key word h its is based off 
  6   of the entire current database.  So, we still  are going to be 
  7   reviewing a lot of documents in the creation of the seed set 
  8   that is based off of the full database. 
  9            THE COURT:  It doesn't sound to me l ike this needs to 
 10   be redone in terms of percentages or other th ings.  You're 
 11   going to get the thousands of documents that the defendants' 
 12   key word hits caused them to review.  If you think that the 
 13   things they coded as nonresponsive should be coded as 
 14   responsive, you will do so, and they will run  it accordingly. 
 15            MR. NEALE:  Can I just add one comme nt to Mr. 
 16   Baskin's? 
 17            THE COURT:  Yes. 
 18            MR. NEALE:  I think we agree that as  long as the 
 19   system has some exemplar documents to go, it will iteratively 
 20   be trained.  However, I think it is important  to point out, and 
 21   we'll get to it, that the defendants have fro m the beginning 
 22   tried to limit significantly the number of do cuments that are 
 23   subject to the iterative process.  You can't have one and not 
 24   the other. 
 25            THE COURT:  No, I think what they ha ve said is that 
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  1   once the system is fully trained and run, at some point, 
  2   undetermined and subject to court approval, t hey are going to 
  3   say the likely relevance when you have reache d X number is too 
  4   small. 
  5            MR. NEALE:  Actually, their initial protocol suggested 
  6   that they would do two rounds of iterative re view for training 
  7   of 2399 each using the 95 percent confidence.   There is nothing 
  8   to say that after two rounds the system will be trained. 
  9            THE COURT:  That's what you are all going to figure 
 10   out. 
 11            MR. NEALE:  The latest protocol sugg ests we'll add 
 12   more rounds but we will significantly reduce the confidence 
 13   level or the number of documents to 500.  Now  we will do 7 
 14   rounds of 500 or 3500 documents to be relied upon in order 
 15   to-determine relevance. 
 16            MR. BASKIN:  No, that is completely wrong.  There is 
 17   no random sample or confidence anymore.  The process that we 
 18   have created in our algorithms returns as man y documents as it 
 19   finds.  It finds it with a certain quality sc ore.  Then it 
 20   ranks them by the highest score to the lowest  score. 
 21            THE COURT:  Is that zero to 100? 
 22            MR. BASKIN:  It's 100 to zero.  The top ones are the 
 23   100 percent or close to it, and it goes down from there.  I 
 24   believe that is what defendants are looking t o review, the 500 
 25   top ones. 
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  1            MR. NEALE:  The patent submitted by Recommind I think 
  2   is inconsistent with that.  Despite that, tak ing that 
  3   representation, you cannot at this point dete rmine how many 
  4   rounds of iterative review you can do to get the system right. 
  5            THE COURT:  That is a different issu e from what we are 
  6   talking about now, although it may be the one  you want me to 
  7   get to next. 
  8            MR. NEALE:  There is one issue relat ed to the seed 
  9   set.  We have the defendants' search terms, w hich we have dealt 
 10   with.  We have the judgmental sample, which I  think Mr. Anders 
 11   mentioned first.  Then we have the plaintiffs ' search terms 
 12   which would be applied against the entire doc ument collection. 
 13            THE COURT:  Right. 
 14            MR. NEALE:  We suggest 5,000 documen ts be reviewed as 
 15   a result of that search.  I think defense sug gests 3. 
 16            THE COURT:  You know what King Solom on suggests. 
 17            MR. ANDERS:  4,000. 
 18            THE COURT:  Is there any magic to an y of these numbers 
 19   other than everybody gets paid a lot more dep ending on how much 
 20   work is done?  4,000.  Solomon rules. 
 21            MR. ANDERS:  Your Honor, that's fine . 
 22            Going back to defendants' seed set a nd what we are 
 23   going to be turning over to plaintiffs, the o nly issue that we 
 24   were discussing is the way we had reviewed ou r key word hits 
 25   was, for example, the key word "training" yie lded a few hundred 
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  1   thousand hits. 
  2            THE COURT:  Then you did training wi thin -- 
  3            MR. ANDERS:  With "Da Silva Moore."  The document 
  4   count was 133 documents. 
  5            THE COURT:  You reviewed 50. 
  6            MR. ANDERS:  The top 50 ranked.  We didn't find any 
  7   relevant.  The only issue I may foresee, beca use more documents 
  8   were added to the system, is if we were to do  that same search 
  9   right now, I don't know if the top 50 would b e the same top 50. 
 10   We can certainly produce all of the relevant documents. 
 11            THE COURT:  Wait.  Are you telling m e that you didn't 
 12   save these results and that you have to rerun  the system to get 
 13   them and therefore there might be some slight  differences? 
 14            MR. ANDERS:  Yes, your Honor.  I thi nk as we were 
 15   learning the system and when we were doing th ese initial 
 16   reviews, I don't know if each specific search  was saved as an 
 17   individualized search. 
 18            THE COURT:  It sounds like you have to run it again, 
 19   which also solves the plaintiffs' problem, be cause then you're 
 20   running against the full 300,000 added to the  set.  You will 
 21   still review the same number.  Whether you re review them on 
 22   your side or as long as you have screened for  privilege, if you 
 23   did 50 before, it may not be the same top 50,  but you're going 
 24   to give 50 to the plaintiffs, etc. 
 25            MR. ANDERS:  What I would envision p roducing is not 
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  1   necessarily these 50 went with this grouping.   It would just be 
  2   here are all of the relevant ones and all of the nonrelevant 
  3   ones.  I don't think it really matters how we  got to it.  What 
  4   matters is how we coded it. 
  5            THE COURT:  Any problem with that? 
  6            MR. NEALE:  I wanted to clarify that  that, to the 
  7   extent it is being rerun now, also includes t he custodians that 
  8   were added today.  That will round out the en tire dataset. 
  9            THE COURT:  Yes.  Good.  We have mad e progress. 
 10            MR. NEALE:  All of the documents tha t are reviewed as 
 11   a function of the seed set, whether are ultim ately coded 
 12   relevant or irrelevant, aside from privilege,  will be turned 
 13   over to us? 
 14            MR. ANDERS:  Correct. 
 15            MR. NEALE:  OK. 
 16            THE COURT:  Good. 
 17            MR. ANDERS:  Your Honor, if I may mo ve on to the 
 18   iterative rounds.  I heard what Mr. Neale was  saying, and I 
 19   think there is one big source of disagreement .  When we were 
 20   here last time we had proposed doing two roun ds and then, after 
 21   that second round, reviewing the top 40,000.  Your Honor said 
 22   no, that wasn't sufficient.  The way we revis ed the protocol 
 23   was to include seven iterative rounds where a t each round we 
 24   review a minimum of 500 documents, not 500 to tal. 
 25            We discussed this with our vendor.  Because this is 
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  1   such a fluid process and we don't really know  what is going to 
  2   come back in that first round or that second round, it is tough 
  3   to pinpoint an exact number.  What we said in  our protocol was 
  4   we are going to use our best judgment along w ith the assistance 
  5   of the project manager to review an appropria te number but at 
  6   least 500 during each round. 
  7            We'll look at different concept grou ps.  There may be 
  8   certain rounds that have better sets.  And we  will stop either 
  9   at the end of the seventh round or if, betwee n two rounds, the 
 10   number of new documents being brought back is  less than 5 
 11   percent.  That was a number that we picked.  There is no 
 12   science to it.  What we are trying to find is  a point where the 
 13   machine is not returning a large number of ne w documents. 
 14            But assume we get to the seventh rou nd.  I think 
 15   plaintiffs' concern was we don't know if seve n rounds is 
 16   enough.  What we have in our protocol is at t he end of that 
 17   seventh round we will do another random sampl e of the discards 
 18   to compare against the first random sample.  That will give us 
 19   a sense of whether additional highly relevant  documents are 
 20   being left out in the discards. 
 21            THE COURT:  When you say you are com paring the 
 22   discards at that stage to the original discar ds, what do you 
 23   mean by that? 
 24            MR. ANDERS:  What I mean by that is at the very 
 25   beginning of the process we did the random sa mple of 2399 
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  1   documents, and a certain number of documents,  I think 26 or 30 
  2   of that, were found to be relevant.  We now h ave a general 
  3   baseline.  After we go through the seven iter ations, the system 
  4   is going to be pulling out what it believes a re the most 
  5   relevant documents. 
  6            When that is done, we are going to h ave the documents 
  7   the computer pulled and then everything else that's out there. 
  8   We are going to do a random sample of everyth ing else that is 
  9   out there and see how many relevant documents  are in that set. 
 10            The idea and the hope is it is going  to be much less 
 11   than what we found the first time.  If it is,  that is the 
 12   assurance that the process worked.  If it's n ot, and if it's 
 13   the same number or higher or just one or two lower, we'll have 
 14   to discuss.  Maybe we will need to do another  one or two 
 15   iterations. 
 16            That is our proposal for how we do t he iterations. 
 17            THE COURT:  Mr. Neale. 
 18            MR. NEALE:  I think we are stating t hat we don't at 
 19   this point agree that this is going to work.  This is new 
 20   technology, and it has to be proven out.  We are going to have 
 21   insight into it and we are glad to see it pro ven out. 
 22   However -- 
 23            THE COURT:  Does Doar have its own c omputer-assisted 
 24   review a/k/a predictive coding tool? 
 25            MR. NEALE:  We advise clients on its  use and its not 
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  1   being used.  But no. 
  2            THE COURT:  I'm sorry.  You advise c lients on its use? 
  3            MR. NEALE:  On the use of other pred ictive coding 
  4   systems. 
  5            THE COURT:  So you know if done righ t, in theory if 
  6   not in practice, and I think in practice, it works? 
  7            MR. NEALE:  Yes. 
  8            THE COURT:  It certainly works bette r than most of the 
  9   alternatives, if not all of the alternatives.   So the idea is 
 10   not to make this perfect, it's not going to b e perfect.  The 
 11   idea is to make it significantly better than the alternative 
 12   without nearly as much cost. 
 13            MR. NEALE:  Right.  I think it is fa ir to say we are 
 14   big proponents of it.  However -- 
 15            THE COURT:  Let me ask one more ques tion.  If my 
 16   memory is right, your protocol is that at eac h of these rounds 
 17   they are going to see the same documents you see, again except 
 18   privilege? 
 19            MR. ANDERS:  Yes. 
 20            THE COURT:  It seems to me I'm accep ting the protocol 
 21   that you have suggested in that regard.  But if you get to the 
 22   seventh round and people are saying the compu ter is still doing 
 23   weird things, it's not stabilized, etc., we n eed to do another 
 24   round or two, either you will agree to that o r you will both 
 25   come in with the appropriate QC information a nd everything else 
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  1   and do another round or two or five or 500 or  whatever it takes 
  2   to stabilize the system. 
  3            MR. NEALE:  I just want to add in re sponse that our 
  4   concern about the approach overall, and Recom mind in particular 
  5   in this instance, is the complexity of the ca se and the data. 
  6   Along with that is the fact that it is only g oing to serve up 
  7   for review after your initial seed set what i t determined at 
  8   that point to be relevant. 
  9            THE COURT:  Right. 
 10            MR. NEALE:  Those 500-document itera tive reviews or 
 11   3500 documents plus or minus subject to revie w are not being 
 12   randomly sampled and giving us a proper repre sentation of 
 13   whether it is getting the irrelevancy right.  So it is a very 
 14   limited verification for the training set of what's relevant. 
 15            THE COURT:  In the end you're going to be sampling 
 16   probably greater than 2399 because it may be both a statistical 
 17   sample and what I will call comfort sample an d you will see how 
 18   much of that is coming out of the system is n ot relevant that 
 19   should have been coded as relevant. 
 20            MR. NEALE:  The proposal suggests 23 99 of whatever the 
 21   number of the irrelevant documents, I think i n their estimation 
 22   a few million, one round of 2399 to verify th e irrelevancy, 
 23   which we have had no insight into throughout the entire 
 24   process. 
 25            THE COURT:  You have had insight onl y in the sense 
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  1   that you're seeing everything they are seeing  in terms of 
  2   training. 
  3            MR. NEALE:  But we are only seeing w hat the system 
  4   thought was relevant that they coded to be ir relevant, not to 
  5   be what the system thought was irrelevant tha t should have been 
  6   coded relevant. 
  7            THE COURT:  Maybe the answer is that  the seven 
  8   iterative rounds of a minimum of 500 should n ot only be looking 
  9   at the highest-response documents but should be looking at some 
 10   other group of the low-response documents, wh ether that is 2399 
 11   or, because we are doing lots of iterations, it's 500 or 
 12   whatever you all think.  That may make perfec t sense.  If it 
 13   keeps turning up relevant documents, that's g ood.  But if it's 
 14   missing a lot of documents on each of those r eviews, we need to 
 15   figure that out sooner rather than later. 
 16            MR. ANDERS:  Your Honor, one of my u nderstandings is 
 17   with each iterative round, the system will cr eate, I think we 
 18   have it set for up to 40 different concept gr oups where it just 
 19   finds like documents.  That was going to be p art of the 
 20   500-plus documents we review, picking differe nt concept groups 
 21   that seem to make sense. 
 22            THE COURT:  What about the concept g roup that they say 
 23   is totally irrelevant?  That's probably not a  group, but it's 
 24   what I call the tail. 
 25            MR. ANDERS:  I guess is the request that we would also 
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  1   review a certain number of documents at the l ower end of the 
  2   spectrum? 
  3            THE COURT:  Or the middle of the spe ctrum. 
  4            MR. NEALE:  That's the suggestion.  Our protocol 
  5   suggests a random sample of everything. 
  6            THE COURT:  How big a random sample?  
  7            MR. NEALE:  At the 95 percent confid ence level of 
  8   2399. 
  9            THE COURT:  That's 2399 each time? 
 10            MR. ANDERS:  Yes. 
 11            MR. NEALE:  Getting to the 500 docum ent number -- 
 12            MR. BASKIN:  It's not, no. 
 13            MR. NEALE:  -- our sense is that we will wind up doing 
 14   several more rounds of iterative review at 50 0 than we would if 
 15   we agreed to 2399, and that in the end we wil l get there faster 
 16   and review less documents. 
 17            THE COURT:  Does that make sense, Mr . Baskin?  In 
 18   other words, instead of 7 times 500, 5 times 1,000 or whatever 
 19   the math is? 
 20            MR. BASKIN:  I'm trying to make sure  that both parties 
 21   get what they want in the scenario.  What hap pens in the 
 22   proposal by the defendants is that they are p roviding the most 
 23   relevant documents in their review. 
 24            THE COURT:  Right. 
 25            MR. BASKIN:  If you do a random samp le within that 
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  1   particular subset, it is not the 2399, becaus e if the computer 
  2   returns let's say 10,000 documents, 95 percen t plus or minus 2 
  3   is no longer 2399. 
  4            MR. NEALE:  We are not talking about  that's the 
  5   difference.  We are not limiting it to what y ou think is 
  6   relevant.  We want to randomly sample everyth ing and the coding 
  7   that was applied or not applied, so that we k now whether your 
  8   irrelevancy categorization is correct. 
  9            MR. BASKIN:  That will happen at the  end. 
 10            MR. NEALE:  We don't think one rando m sample of 
 11   3 million documents will give us enough. 
 12            MR. BASKIN:  Judge, from what I unde rstand, the 
 13   request is not to do the random sample iterat ions, finish the 
 14   iterations.  I'm still not understanding. 
 15            THE COURT:  What they are saying is each time you run 
 16   it, whether it's 7 or less, and it may be two  different things 
 17   to satisfy yourself on the defense side and s omething else to 
 18   satisfy the plaintiffs, but whether you do th e 500 best 
 19   documents or not, the 500 and possibly more, Mr. Neale was 
 20   suggesting that on each iteration there is a random sample 
 21   drawn and the computer will have coded some o f those as 
 22   relevant and some of them as not relevant; an d if it is 
 23   miscoding the documents that are not relevant , then there's a 
 24   problem. 
 25            MR. BASKIN:  Let me clarify.  The co mputer doesn't 
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  1   code documents.  The computer suggests docume nts that are 
  2   potentially relevant or similar. 
  3            THE COURT:  Same thing. 
  4            MR. BASKIN:  What happens is during the seven 
  5   iterations, all the defense attorneys are goi ng to do is refine 
  6   the documents that they are looking at.  Afte r the seven 
  7   iterations, what you are getting is a sum of it all.  Then you 
  8   are performing a random sample.  Doing random  samples in 
  9   between makes no sense.  The actual sum of th e seven iterations 
 10   will just be the sum of that.  You are refini ng and learning. 
 11            THE COURT:  What Mr. Neale is saying  is that you might 
 12   not have to do it seven times and that the so oner you find out 
 13   how well the seed set or the training has wor ked, the better. 
 14            MR. BASKIN:  What's going to happen,  at least from 
 15   what I understand the request to be, is that you do one 
 16   iteration, which is 500, then you do 2399 sam ples, then you do 
 17   another iteration, do another 2399.  I think they are looking 
 18   for the 7 times 2400 plus the 500 each.  We a re looking at 
 19   21,000. 
 20            MR. NEALE:  That's not what we are s uggesting.  We are 
 21   actually suggesting that each iteration be on e sample randomly 
 22   selected of 2399, indicating which of those t he system would 
 23   have flagged as relevant so we know the diffe rence in the way 
 24   in which it is being categorized. 
 25            MR. ANDERS:  I would think, too, we are now just 
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  1   completely missing the power of the system.  What we were going 
  2   to review at each iteration are the different  concept groups 
  3   where the computer is taking not only documen ts it thinks are 
  4   relevant but it has clustered them together a nd we can now 
  5   focus on what is relevant to this case.  By r everting back to a 
  6   random sample after each iteration, we are lo sing out on all 
  7   the ranking and all the other functionality o f this system.  It 
  8   doesn't seem to make sense to me. 
  9            THE COURT:  I'm not sure I understan d the seven 
 10   iterations.  As I understand computer-assiste d review, you want 
 11   to train the system and stabilize it. 
 12            MR. BASKIN:  If I may.  What happens  when you seed the 
 13   particular category is you take documents, yo u review them. 
 14   The relevant documents are now teaching the s ystem that these 
 15   are good documents. 
 16            THE COURT:  Right. 
 17            MR. BASKIN:  It also takes the irrel evant documents 
 18   and says these are not good documents.  It co ntinues to add 
 19   more relevant documents and less irrelevant d ocuments into the 
 20   iterations.  The seven iterations will then r efine that set and 
 21   continue to add the responsive documents to e ach category. 
 22            At the end of that, after seven iter ations, you will 
 23   have not only positive responsive documents, also the 
 24   nonresponsive documents, but the last set of computer-suggested 
 25   documents the system suggests.  From that poi nt the defense is 
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  1   saying we can then verify with a 95 percent p lus or minus 2 of 
  2   2399 to see if there is anything else that th e system did not 
  3   find. 
  4            THE COURT:  Let me make sure I under stand the 
  5   iterations then.  Is the idea that you are lo oking at different 
  6   things in each iteration? 
  7            MR. BASKIN:  Correct.  It's learning  from the input by 
  8   the attorneys.  That's the difference.  That' s why the random 
  9   sample makes no sense. 
 10            MR. NEALE:  I don't doubt that that is how Recommind 
 11   proposes to do it.  Other systems are, howeve r, -- 
 12            THE COURT:  We are stuck with their black box. 
 13            MR. NEALE:  -- fine to do it. 
 14            MR. BASKIN:  It's not a black box.  We actually show 
 15   everything that we are doing. 
 16            THE COURT:  I'm using "black box" in  the legal tech 
 17   way of talking.  Let's try it this way, then we'll see where it 
 18   goes.  To the extent there is a difference be tween plaintiffs' 
 19   expert and the defendants' on what to do -- a nd to the extent 
 20   I'm coming down on your side now, on the defe nse side, that 
 21   doesn't give you a free pass -- random sample  or supplemented 
 22   random sample, once you tell me and them the system is trained, 
 23   it's in great shape, and there are not going to be very many 
 24   documents, there will be some but there are n ot going to be 
 25   many, coded as irrelevant that really are rel evant, and 
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  1   certainly there are not going to be any docum ents coded as 
  2   irrelevant that are smoking guns or game chan gers, if it turns 
  3   out that that is proved wrong, then you may a t great expense 
  4   have to redo everything and do it more like t he way Mr. Neale 
  5   wants to do it or whatever. 
  6            For the moment, since I think I unde rstand the 
  7   training process, and going random is not nec essarily going to 
  8   help at that stage, and since Mr. Neale and t he lawyers for the 
  9   plaintiffs are going to be involved with you at all of these 
 10   stages, let's see how it develops. 
 11            MR. ANDERS:  Your Honor, the last ph ase, just so we 
 12   close this out, at the end of the seventh ite ration our 
 13   proposal calls for them to manually review al l of the results 
 14   with the caveat and the provision that depend ing on that 
 15   number, we reserve the right to come to the C ourt for some 
 16   level of relief, whether it's cost shifting, whether it's you 
 17   stop at the top 30, 40, 50,000, whatever that  number is.  Also, 
 18   by that point we will have the relevance rank ings or 
 19   percentages and we will have a sense of what is there. 
 20            THE COURT:  As I said before, I'm no t prepared to rule 
 21   on where you stop until I see those relevance  rankings.  Any 
 22   issue on that, Mr. Neale? 
 23            MR. NEALE:  Again, the biggest conce rn that I will 
 24   convey to my clients here is that we are not going to have 
 25   proper insight into how the system is determi ning irrelevancy. 
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  1   We are not going to see representative sample s of those 
  2   documents. 
  3            THE COURT:  You're going to see the training. 
  4   Frankly, since you're going to see all the do cuments used to 
  5   train the system, it's not like the system is  then black box or 
  6   not -- Mr. Baskin doesn't like me referring t o it as a black 
  7   box -- you're going to know how the system wa s trained to find 
  8   relevance. 
  9            MR. NEALE:  Right.  But we are only going to see as a 
 10   result what is relevant.  We are not going to  see how it 
 11   actually interpreted it to the result set.  W e are only going 
 12   to see coming out of the seed set things that  are relevant. 
 13            THE COURT:  That's always how it's g oing to be. 
 14            MR. NEALE:  Maybe in their system, b ut not in other 
 15   systems. 
 16            THE COURT:  In other computer-assist ed review systems? 
 17            MR. NEALE:  They are simultaneous ra ndom samples that 
 18   compare machine-generated review to human rev iew, compare the 
 19   two, reach a level, and tell you you're there .  This is we are 
 20   going to tell you what is relevant, as long a s you confirm it, 
 21   we're good, we're done. 
 22            THE COURT:  I thought seven iteratio ns is doing 
 23   exactly what you are saying. 
 24            MR. BASKIN:  That is correct.  It's human review. 
 25            MR. NEALE:  I think it is actually w orse because it's 
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  1   only giving you what it first determined to b e relevant, having 
  2   you verify or not those calls, and then using  that to determine 
  3   better what's relevant, not against how you h ave miscoded for 
  4   irrelevancy.  So, if I think 500 documents as  a sample is too 
  5   small, 7 is certainly too much of a limit.  I  question why the 
  6   original protocol suggested 2399 and was vali d and this 
  7   protocol suggests 500. 
  8            THE COURT:  How many times? 
  9            MR. NEALE:  2. 
 10            THE COURT:  Will 2 times through at 2399 work, and 
 11   then you do whatever else you want to do afte r that in terms of 
 12   irrelevance as opposed to relevance? 
 13            MR. BASKIN:  The system could return  300 documents in 
 14   the first iteration.  At that point you can't  do 2399.  I'm 
 15   actually impartial.  I designed the system.  I work for the 
 16   company, and I'm not getting paid for this.  I just wanted to 
 17   let you know that 7 iterations from a quality  perspective is 
 18   better to the plaintiff. 
 19            MR. NEALE:  It is also inconsistent with your patent, 
 20   which suggests that you do the iterations unt il the system 
 21   tells you it's got it right.  Speaking to the  limit on that 
 22   without having done it is not consistent with  your own patent 
 23   and with what is generally accepted as best p ractice. 
 24            THE COURT:  They also claim to have a patent on the 
 25   word "predictive coding" or a trademark or a copyright.  We 
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  1   know where that went in the industry.  But I' m just tweaking 
  2   you. 
  3            MR. BASKIN:  No problem.  The predic tive patent coding 
  4   does indeed go through that.  However, when y ou have a certain 
  5   number of iterations and you have a final rev iew of all 
  6   computer-suggested documents and you are conf ined to 7 
  7   iterations as well as having the plaintiffs r eview those 
  8   documents and seeing yourself what's happenin g, then you can 
  9   judge for yourself whether or not the defenda nts are making the 
 10   right decisions on these documents.  If you a gree on those 
 11   decisions, then you will agree on the actual response of the 
 12   computer-suggested returns from the training sets.  If you 
 13   don't agree on those, then you might have a d ifferent opinion. 
 14            THE COURT:  Let's see how it works. 
 15            MR. NEALE:  The other thing on the s econd part of 
 16   that, which is where the cliff comes in, I do n't think counsel 
 17   truly understands what the expectations of th e process should 
 18   be, assuming it works.  Again, the patent its elf suggests that 
 19   as a result of this process you should be rev iewing 10 to 35 
 20   percent of your total document collection, wh ich is supposed to 
 21   indicate a significant savings, which in this  case would be 
 22   about 300 to 1 million documents.  They keep talking about 
 23   40,000 to 75 as being burdensome and dispropo rtional.  If they 
 24   don't understand the result of the system, wh at to expect, I 
 25   don't understand why they are proposing it in  the first place. 
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  1            MR. ANDERS:  Your Honor, one of the reasons why we 
  2   developed this work flow was, again, this is not a case where 
  3   we are prepared to review a million documents  during this first 
  4   phase.  We worked with our vendor and came up  with a modified 
  5   work flow that we believe is defensible but i s also reviewing a 
  6   more reasonable number of documents for this case. 
  7            THE COURT:  We'll see.  Make sure yo u're keeping track 
  8   of your costs in ways that you will be able o n both sides to 
  9   present to the Court not for reimbursement bu t for 
 10   proportionality as to where you draw the line .  I'm not saying 
 11   that there is a dollar number that I'm going to cut it off at 
 12   or a percentage or where the cliff is.  We ar e going to figure 
 13   all that out. 
 14            All of this, obviously at some expen se, can be 
 15   revisited if things are not working well.  I also remind both 
 16   sides that by the time you get to trial, even  with six 
 17   plaintiffs, if you have more than 100 trial e xhibits it will be 
 18   a miracle.  The idea is I think people should  focus less on do 
 19   I have every last document that says the same  thing or do I 
 20   have the big hot docs that are going to prove  my case, I know 
 21   the response from the bench on that is, sure,  if they can 
 22   assure me they will give me the 100 hot docs that I'm going to 
 23   use as my trial exhibits, I'll quit right the re.  It doesn't 
 24   quite work that way.  Let's not overkill the system. 
 25            Is there anything else we are suppos ed to be doing or 
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  1   resolving or have we now got the protocol loc ked? 
  2            MS. BAINS:  Your Honor, on the 500 d ocuments, I'd just 
  3   ask that it is at least raised to the number that was 
  4   originally suggested, which was the 2399 time s 2.  That gets 
  5   you more documents than they are proposing in  the 3500.  Can we 
  6   raise the 500 document number? 
  7            THE COURT:  The difference is 500 re levant versus 2399 
  8   of which probably 2200 are going to be not re levant.  Mr. 
  9   Neale, do you agree?  Let me not ask it that way.  Do you have 
 10   any suggestion? 
 11            MR. NEALE:  If we are going to apply  their suggestion, 
 12   I believe that 7 rounds of 500 as an indicato r as to whether it 
 13   is working is better than 2 rounds of 2399. 
 14            JUROR NO. 94:  It is at least 500, m aybe more, 
 15   depending on what we see. 
 16            THE COURT:  OK. 
 17            MR. ANDERS:  The last thing I want t o mention, your 
 18   Honor, and it is nothing we need to decide, b ut we have a 
 19   clawback provision in the current confidentia lity agreement.  I 
 20   will likely be submitting a more detailed cla wback provision 
 21   for counsel's consideration. 
 22            THE COURT:  Detailed?  Are we talkin g 502(d) or 
 23   something else? 
 24            MR. ANDERS:  502(e), I believe.  Wel l, we will ask 
 25   your Honor to so order it. 
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  1            THE COURT:  You can do one that says  if you do the 
  2   following 52 steps, then we should be covered  under 502(d). 
  3   That's great, but when step 49 got screwed up  somewhere, you've 
  4   lost your protection.  It seems to me that 50 2(d) can say that 
  5   unless you intended to waive the privilege, w hether you were 
  6   sloppy or careful, you retain the privilege a nd you get the 
  7   clawback.  I'm happy to sign an order that sa ys exactly that. 
  8   If you all want to do it a different way -- 
  9            What I dislike and what I usually re fuse to sign are 
 10   orders that purport to be 502(d) orders that really do nothing 
 11   better than repeat the language of 502(b), as  in "boy," which 
 12   is already a federal rule in place. 
 13            MR. ANDERS:  Let me review the langu age in our 
 14   confidentiality agreement.  I just want to ma ke sure that the 
 15   language we have in place is sufficient to co ver us. 
 16            THE COURT:  Did I sign the confident iality agreement? 
 17            MR. ANDERS:  I don't believe so.  I don't believe it 
 18   was you, your Honor. 
 19            THE COURT:  Then it probably isn't r ight.  I'm happy 
 20   to give you the plain vanilla protected again st anything except 
 21   an intentional waiver 502(d) order.  That is almost all it has 
 22   to say.  Write it up as a separate the docume nt and submit it 
 23   to me, preferably by consent.  I can't imagin e why there would 
 24   be any objection. 
 25            MR. ANDERS:  Thank you, your Honor. 
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  1            THE COURT:  Now are we done with the  protocol? 
  2            MS. BAINS:  I guess the last thing i s defense doesn't 
  3   want to put anything in the protocol about it s preservation 
  4   obligations. 
  5            THE COURT:  That's what that got to do with the 
  6   protocol as opposed to the Zubulake Compensat ion Committee? 
  7            MS. BAINS:  It's in a lot of the mod el protocols. 
  8   There are extensive sections on it. 
  9            THE COURT:  What is it you want it t o say?  Is that in 
 10   the draft in front of me in any way? 
 11            MS. BAINS:  Yes.  Just a couple of s entences here and 
 12   there.  I didn't understand what the problem was. 
 13            THE COURT:  Give me the page. 
 14            MR. ANDERS:  It essentially says tha t we agree to 
 15   preserve everything in their section C.  My c oncern, your 
 16   Honor, is we understand our obligation, we ha ve an obligation 
 17   to preserve.  I don't see why we need to sign  another 
 18   agreement, especially when their proposal had  longer time 
 19   frames than we had agreed to, has different s ources that we had 
 20   disagreement over.  We have an obligation to preserve.  We have 
 21   sent out the preservation notices at least th ree separate 
 22   times.  I don't see why I need to sign anothe r agreement now on 
 23   the preservation issue. 
 24            MS. BAINS:  Because of the phasing. 
 25            THE COURT:  What paragraph?  What pa ge, what 
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  1   paragraph? 
  2            MR. ANDERS:  It appears in a few dif ferent places, 
  3   your Honor.  The first time it appears is -- 
  4            MS. BAINS:  (b), page 2. 
  5            THE COURT:  That's near the beginnin g. 
  6            MR. ANDERS:  At page 2, (b)(1). 
  7            THE COURT:  I don't see that this do es anything. 
  8   Indeed, if you do it your way and then don't hold something 
  9   from a source other than a source in paragrap h C, you've given 
 10   them a free ride on something that is otherwi se required to be 
 11   held under Zubulake Pension Committee and the  like. 
 12            In addition, since so far you have n ot been able to 
 13   prove to me that a lot of the systems that we  killed have 
 14   anything to do with this case.  I don't want to hear it today 
 15   at 2 to 6:00, but if someone came to me and s aid, I want a 
 16   preservation order, Judge, that says I do not  need to preserve 
 17   anything in source XYZ, etc., I might well ag ree to that. 
 18            MS. BAINS:  OK.  Lastly, the issue t ags.  Plaintiffs 
 19   have inserted definitions of what the issue t ag would mean so 
 20   that the system is accurate, the reviewers ar e looking for the 
 21   right things.  We think we should have some l anguage in there 
 22   for what each issue tag means rather than jus t two words. 
 23            THE COURT:  First of all, I assume, with the number of 
 24   documents we are talking about for the seed s et, that the 
 25   review is going to be done by high-level atto rneys. 
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  1            MR. ANDERS:  Yes. 
  2            THE COURT:  If you all want to try t o write something, 
  3   that's fine.  I'm not sure what page on that you want me to 
  4   look at, or what attachment. 
  5            MS. BAINS:  It's on page 24.  Given that a high-level 
  6   attorney is going to be reviewing and will se e the documents, 
  7   if it becomes an issue, we'll deal with it la ter. 
  8            THE COURT:  OK.  This may be for the  benefit of the 
  9   greater bar, but I may wind up issuing an opi nion on some of 
 10   what we did today.  It would be very helpful to now finalize 
 11   the protocol, without prejudice to anyone's r ights to go to 
 12   Judge Carter, finalize the protocol based on everything that 
 13   was agreed or directed today and submit that back to me 
 14   quickly. 
 15            How soon can I get that?  That I ass ume will mean 
 16   largely taking out the argument parts of the protocol of 
 17   plaintiff wants this and defendant wants that  and merely show 
 18   what's in phase 1, what's in later phases or not in a phase, 
 19   the five rounds, the seven rounds, etc. 
 20            MR. ANDERS:  Can we do it by next Fr iday? 
 21            THE COURT:  Sooner if you can. 
 22            MR. ANDERS:  Certainly. 
 23            MS. BAINS:  As in next week, Friday?  
 24            THE COURT:  I'd rather have it a wee k from today, 
 25   which is next Wednesday.  Where does Lincoln come in?  You 
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  1   probably work through Lincoln. 
  2            MR. ANDERS:  That's probably the 20t h. 
  3            THE COURT:  Presidents Day is the 20 th.  Lincoln's 
  4   birthday is going to be either the 13th or th e 14th.  Thursday 
  5   the 16th, does that work for all of you? 
  6            MR. ANDERS:  Yes, your Honor. 
  7            MS. BAINS:  Sure.  Can we set an int ermediate deadline 
  8   to have a draft from one party to the other?  It became a 
  9   problem last time because we didn't have enou gh time to review 
 10   it. 
 11            THE COURT:  Sure.  Who is drafting i t? 
 12            MR. ANDERS:  I'll draft it, your Hon or. 
 13            THE COURT:  Can you get them a draft  by Monday? 
 14            MR. ANDERS:  Yes, your Honor. 
 15            THE COURT:  Good. 
 16            MS. BAINS:  Thank you. 
 17            THE COURT:  With all due respect to both of you, if I 
 18   have to start doing Mickey Mouse of who does a draft to whom 
 19   when on something somewhere between what's al ready on paper so 
 20   all you have to do is delete all the argument s and the things 
 21   that one side or the other lost -- it should be a no-brainer. 
 22   You will have the transcript.  Really, if you  all can't do 
 23   this, you're going to encourage me greatly to  give you a 
 24   special master and run your bills up instead of me dealing with 
 25   all of you. 
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  1            MR. BRECHER:  Judge, I have one quic k issue, if I can, 
  2   before we end. 
  3            THE COURT:  Yes.  We are also going to have to pick a 
  4   date for your next visit here. 
  5            MR. BRECHER:  The plaintiffs served a third-party 
  6   subpoena yesterday on ADP.  I'm just asking, in light of the 
  7   Court's ruling today, whether that subpoena w as going to be 
  8   withdrawn so that we can avoid further motion  practice. 
  9            MS. BAINS:  Yes, if we get the W-2's  from the 
 10   defendant, we can withdraw that. 
 11            MR. BRECHER:  Thank you. 
 12            THE COURT:  Withdraw it now, period,  without prejudice 
 13   if the W-2 issue somehow doesn't work. 
 14            MS. BAINS:  Sure. 
 15            MR. BRECHER:  Thank you, your Honor.  
 16            THE COURT:  When do you all want to come back? 
 17            MS. NURHUSSEIN:  Your Honor, if I co uld address one 
 18   more issue very quickly?  I need about 30 sec onds. 
 19            THE COURT:  Sure.  I have to remembe r to start giving 
 20   you six-hour conference blocks. 
 21            MS. NURHUSSEIN:  I just want to note , your Honor, that 
 22   since the last conference we have been confer ring with the 
 23   defendants regarding the jurisdictional disco very requests.  We 
 24   have had meet-and-confers with the defendants , some follow-up 
 25   correspondence regarding some of the outstand ing discovery.  We 
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  1   received a response from Publicis yesterday w hich we are 
  2   reviewing. 
  3            I discussed with Mr. Evans, counsel for Publicis just 
  4   before this conference.  What we proposed is that the parties 
  5   confer again this week and then submit to the  Court a proposed 
  6   schedule on jurisdictional discovery.  We are  trying to narrow 
  7   the discovery disputes and reach agreement on  any additional 
  8   time that we need. 
  9            THE COURT:  Good. 
 10            MS. NURHUSSEIN:  Thank you, your Hon or. 
 11            THE COURT:  I guess the other thing is since there is 
 12   going to be lots of cooperation and iteration , what sort of 
 13   deadline do you want me to impose on everythi ng you're all 
 14   doing collectively to make the predictive cod ing end up?  Or 
 15   should I leave you to your own devices? 
 16            MR. ANDERS:  Your Honor, it's tough for me to estimate 
 17   how long it's going to take.  We are going to  start on it right 
 18   away, obviously.  It's just tough to give a t ime estimate right 
 19   now. 
 20            THE COURT:  That means we will proba bly get you in for 
 21   conferences sooner rather than later to make sure things are 
 22   moving along.  With that, when do you all wan t to come back? 
 23            MS. BAINS:  The first week of March.  
 24            MR. ANDERS:  The 5th and the 7th are  good for me, your 
 25   Honor. 
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  1            THE COURT:  The amount of time you a ll need, are you 
  2   free on the 8th in the morning? 
  3            MR. ANDERS:  I have a deposition tha t day, your Honor. 
  4            THE COURT:  What about the 9th? 
  5            MR. ANDERS:  That looks good, your H onor. 
  6            MS. BAINS:  That's fine. 
  7            THE COURT:  I'm going to give you a date of March 9 at 
  8   9:30.  I may have to move that date to earlie r in that week. 
  9   I'm supposed to be talking at an e-discovery conference or a 
 10   conference with an e-discovery session on the  9th, but I'm 
 11   trying to bail out of that because I just don 't have time for 
 12   it.  It depends on whether they can get someo ne to replace me, 
 13   since I said I was going to do it.  Right now  I'm assuming that 
 14   I'm replaceable.  If that changes, we'll let you know. 
 15            For the last time perhaps but so it' s on the record 
 16   again, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. Code section 636 , Federal Rules 6 
 17   and 72, any party aggrieved by any of my ruli ngs has 14 days, 
 18   calendar days, to bring objections to Judge C arter.  Failure to 
 19   file objections constitutes a waiver for all purposes. 
 20   Obviously, not a waiver on anything that I sa id is a phase 1 
 21   versus phase 2, other than if you want it in phase 1.  In other 
 22   words, anything that I said you may get later  but you are not 
 23   getting now is probably not ripe for review.  But you'll figure 
 24   that out and objections filed with Judge Cart er will figure 
 25   that out. 
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  1            Failure to file objections within th e 14 day period 
  2   constitutes a waiver for all purposes, includ ing appeal.  The 
  3   14 days starts immediately regardless of how soon you get the 
  4   transcript because you have heard the rulings .  In any event, 
  5   because I think you're all going to need the transcript and I'm 
  6   certainly going to need the transcript becaus e of all the 
  7   protocol-related decisions made on it, I'm go ing to direct both 
  8   sides to split the cost 50-50 for an expedite d transcript. 
  9   That means, since we have kept Tom late, as s oon as he can get 
 10   it, which is probably Friday, maybe, Monday a t the latest. 
 11            I think that's it.  Is there somethi ng I forgot to do? 
 12   I don't think so. 
 13            (Adjourned) 
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